NHamp 352.07 H51 1978

# Annual Reports

# OF THE OFFICERS OF THE TOWN OF HENNIKER

ANNUAL REPORTS OF OFFICERS, COMMITTEES, AND
BOARDS AND VITAL STATISTICS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1978

inversity of autampshire Library

### OFFICE AND MEETING HOURS

### OFFICE OF SELECTMEN

Tel. 428-3221

Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. (Closed for half-hour lunch)
Selectmen hold regular meetings at 7:30 p.m. each Tuesday

### TOWN CLERK AND TAX COLLECTOR

Tel. 428-3240

As posted on outside of Town Hall

### HENNIKER DISPOSAL AREA

 Saturday and Sunday
 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

 Monday
 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

 Tuesday
 12:00 noon to 5:00 p.m.

 Thursday
 12:00 noon to 5:00 p.m.

Closed Wednesday, Friday and Holidays

### TUCKER FREE LIBRARY

Tel. 428-3471

 Monday
 12:00 noon to 5:00 p.m.

 Wednesday
 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.

 Friday
 12:00 noon to 5:00 p.m.

 Saturday
 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.

During July and August the Library is closed on Saturday.

### PLANNING BOARD

No Office or Hours

Regular meetings are scheduled on the Second and Fourth Wednesday of each month. Meetings are scheduled as necessary during July and August.

### HENNIKER DISTRICT COURT

Tel. 428-3214

Court convenes each Friday evening at 7:00 p.m. Clerk's hours are by appointment only.

### CONCORD VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION Tel. 428-3244

The Nurse is in Henniker on Monday, Wednesday and Thursday each week, weather permitting. She may be reached by dialing 428-3244 or call Concord 224-4093, collect.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

COGSWELL SPRING WATER WORKS	
Treasurer's Report	58
	58
COMMITTEES AND BOARDS	
Bicentennial Committee	61
Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission	67
Community Action Program	69
Concord Visiting Nurse Association	66
Conservation Commission	68
Henniker Youth Services	60
Memorial Day	76
Park Commission	71
Planning Board & Master Plan Committee	64
Rescue Squad	62
Rescue Squad Wage Study Committee	67
Zoning Board of Adjustment	63
HENNIKER DISTRICT COURT	
CLU E' 'I B	
Clerk's Financial Report	59
OFFICE OF THE SELECTMEN	
Affirmative Votes, 1978, Record of	16
Balance Sheet, General Fund	23
Balance Sheet, General Fund	12
Invested Funds	56
Money Raised & Appropriated Memorandum of	15
Payments, Statement of	29
Scieculicity Report	/
Town Property, Schedule of	22
Town Property, Schedule of Town Valuation	21
TOWN WARRANT	8
TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORTS	
Births, Record of  Deaths, Record of	112
Deaths, Record of	112
Marriages, Record of	110
Tax Collector's Report Tax Sales Account	24
Tax Sales Account	25
Town Clerk's Report	
TREASURER'S REPORTS	26
TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS	
Trust Funds, Distribution of Income	56
Trust Funds, Report of	50
•	50
TUCKER FREE LIBRARY	
Librarian's Report	74

Treasurer's Report Trust Funds Report Trustees of Tucker Free Library	
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES	
Appropriations & Expenditures, Statement of	46
Auditors Letter of Transmittal	42
Balance Sheet	43
Capital Projects Fund	28
Financial Position	44
Long Term Indebtedness	48
Notes to Financial Statements	46
Revenue, Expenses & Retained Earnings	43
Revenue, Expenditures & Changes	45
Sewer Warrants	47
HENNIKER SCHOOL DISTRICT	
Expenditures, 1977-78	91
Organization of	
Principal's Report	104
Receipts, Detailed Statement of	96
School Board Certificate	92
School Budget	
School Board Report	93
School Clerk's Report of Meeting	98
School Lunch Financial Statement	98
School Facilities Study Committee	99
•	70
SCHOOL WARRANT 1979	
Superintendent of Schools, Annual Message	106
Superintendents of Schools, Salaries of	108
Supervisory Union Budget	108
Supervisory Union Budget Apportionment	
Treasurer's Report	96

# OFFICERS, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES TOWN OF HENNIKER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

### REPRESENTATIVES TO THE GENERAL COURT

Jane Holliday Avis Nichols

### **MODERATOR**

William L. Damour

### SELECTMEN AND OVERSEERS OF THE PUBLIC WELFARE

William J. McIver Term Expires 1979
Norman C. Parmenter Term Expires 1980
David P. Currier Term Expires 1981

### TOWN CLERK AND TAX COLLECTOR

Janet M. Murdough

### TOWN TREASURER

E. Benjamin Ayer

# SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS John L. Brown

# WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPERATOR Charles E. Damour

### POLICE DEPARTMENT

Thomas W. Hassler, Chief

John D. Beasley
Larry Ashford
Edward S. Gould
John L. Brown, Traffic Enforcement Officer

Donald L. Chagnon
Charles R. Hogg
Steven A. Randall

### FIRE ENGINEERS

E. Benjamin Ayer, Chief

Charles E. Damour

Marshall H. Connor

Frederick C. Brunnhoelzl, Jr.

Clarence L. Fitch

Steven Connor

Donald R. Goss
Louis J. Damour

Frederick A. Connor

Welton A. McKean

### SUPERVISORS OF CHECKLIST

Dana F. Greenly
Percy C. Davison, Jr.
Hattie M. Edmunds
Term Expires 1980
Term Expires 1982
Term Expires 1984

### BALLOT CLERKS

Judith Connor Fred LaBar Barbara French Jolene U. Schillinger

### HEALTH OFFICER AND MEAT INSPECTOR

Daymon A. Murdough

### WATER COMMISSIONERS

Donat E. Damour Term Expires 1979
Clarence W. Edmunds Term Expires 1980
Charles E. Damour Term Expires 1981

### TRUSTEES OF TUCKER FREE LIBRARY

Carolyn McKean
J. Philip Chase
Clarence W. Edmunds
Duane B. Sanborn
Brenda Connor
Mary F. Kjellman

Term Expires 1979
Term Expires 1980
Term Expires 1980
Term Expires 1981
Term Expires 1981

### TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS

Clarence L. Fitch
Myron J. Hazen
J. Philip Chase

Term Expires 1979
Term Expires 1980
Term Expires 1981

### TOWN AUDITORS

John A. Savage Term Expires 1979
Edward Hatlack Term Expires 1980
J. Kenneth Cummiskey Term Expires 1981

# HENNIKER RESCUE SQUAD

David Currier, Chief

### FENCE VIEWERS

Lester H. Farrar

Guy H. Brill, Jr.

### CIVIL DEFENSE DIRECTOR

Kenneth W. Ward (Resigned) Raymond Boivin

### COMMITTEES AND BOARDS

Budget Committee

Edward J. Damour

Stephen C. Bennett

George A. Sanborn

Term Expires 1979

Term Expires 1980

Term Expires 1980

Richard A. French, Sr.	Term Expires 1980
Peter Gilbert	Term Expires 1981
Arthur S. Hadley, Jr.	Term Expires 1981
Clarence Fitch	Term Expires 1981
Frederick Brunnhoelzl, III	Term Expires 1981
Selectmen, Ex-Officio	
School Board Chairman, Ex-Officio	
Conservation Commission	
Spencer Bennett	Term Expires 1979
Edward Hatlack	Term Expires 1979
Virginia LaBar	Term Expires 1979
Robert Seaman, Chairman	Term Expires 1981
Thomas Heavey	Term Expires 1981
Historic District Commission	
Dr. Richard Hudson, Chairman	Adolphus Holton
Marion Chase	Lester E. Connor
Willa Brigham	Duane Sanborn
Industrial Committee	
Norman C. Parmenter	Lester E. Connor
Clarence W. Edmunds	Charles E. Damour
Robert W. Sterling	
Park Board	
Merle R. Patenaude, Chairman	Ralph Parkhurst, Treas.
Robert W. Morse, Jr.	•
Planning Board	
Steven Connor	Term Expires 1979
Joseph I. Grady, Moderator	Term Expires 1980
James Connor	Term Expires 1981
Rodney Patenaude	Term Expires 1983
Adolphus Holton, Chairman	Term Expires 1983
Nina C. Morse, Secretary	Term Expires 1983
George Russell, Alternate	Term Expires 1979
Norman C. Parmenter, Selectman Ex	
Representatives To Central N.H. Regional	
Nina C. Morse	Vacancy
Sewer Advisory Committee	
George Sanborn	Lester E. Connor
Adolphus Holton	Robert T. French
Roby Wood	
Zoning Board of Adjustment	
Douglas Allen, Chairman	Term Expires 1979
Clarence Fitch	Term Expires 1979
Winslow Foster	Term Expires 1980
Benjamin Woodaman	Term Expires 1982
Edward Spakoski, Clerk	Term Expires 1983
Arthur S. Hadley, Jr., Alternate	Term Expires 1979
Richard Cunliffe, Alternate	Term Expires 1979

### SELECTMEN'S REPORT

The Board of Selectmen would like to take this opportunity to publicly thank our retiring Town Treasurer, E. Benjamin Ayer, for his twenty-two years of faithful and dedicated services to the Town of Henniker. Few people realize the many hours involved in record keeping and paper work that a Treasurer must devote, few are aware of the federal, state and local regulations placed on a Treasurer, few realize the hassels! Through all of this plus the signing, mailing, recording and detailing payments; borrowing, repaying and reborrowing of monies; "Ben" has been faithful. There are no words to express thanks to such a person; but "Thank you" anyway!

This has been an extremely busy year for the Board of Selectmen. According to the records only one Selectmen's meeting was called off, that due to holidays. Shortly after March 1979 elections, Arthur S. Hadley, Jr. resigned due to the pressures of a newly formed business and William J. McIver was appointed to fill the vacancy. During the course of the year the board approved 36 permits for building, remodelling and additions; 12 driveway permits; and three mobile home permits. Many more "users" were connected to the Wastewater Treatment Plant, but not all "hook-ups" are complete as yet. Let's get them all done in 1979, the plant needs a capacity flow to operate at peak efficiency.

The Sanitary Landfill area is in "full swing" with hours as indicated in the front of this book. We hope to be able to start some recycling areas in the Spring and ask for the cooperation of all users in this regard. Yes, you will find burning at times. The area has a permit from the State of New Hampshire to burn accumulations of clean brush and clean wood demolition material on a periodic basis. We are careful to observe the rules and regulations in this regard. Please do not be alarmed if you see smoke - its legal!

We were very successful in the sale of the old highway truck as you will see from the appropriations statement. The truck was purchased by a gentleman from Massachusetts and by the amount of the bid, he really wanted the truck. We were also able to save some taxpayers money on the purchase of the loader; the balance is also shown on the appropriations statement. The Town Clerk's/Tax Collector's Office and the Selectmen's office now have adding machines which have enough digits to add up the increasing amounts of taxes and expenditures of the town. Thank you for last year's affirmative vote on that article.

Sincerely yours,

Norman C. Parmenter
David P. Currier
William J. McIver
Board of Selectmen

# STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE TOWN OF HENNIKER TOWN WARRANT 1979

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Henniker in the County of Merrimack in said State qualified to vote in Town Affairs: (LS)

You are hereby notified to meet at Cogswell High School Auditorium in Henniker on Tuesday the Thirteenth Day of March, next, at twelve of the clock noon to act upon the following:

1. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the Ensuing Year.

### THE POLLS WILL BE OPEN FROM 12:00 NOON TO 6:00 P.M.

As voted at Town Meeting March 7, 1962, you are hereby notified to meet at Cogswell High School Auditorium in said Henniker on Wednesday the Fourteenth day of March, next, at seven thirty of the clock in the evening to act upon the following:

- 2. To hear and act upon the report of Town Officers, Library Trustees, Trustees of Trust Funds and other Committees.
- 3. To raise and appropriate such sums of money as may be necessary to defray Town charges for the ensuing year.
- 4. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the repair of highways and bridges and repair or purchase of machinery.
- 5. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for maintenance of the Police Department.
- 6. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the maintenance of the Fire Department.
- 7. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the maintenance of the Henniker District Court.
- 8. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for State Aid Construction of Class V Roads.
- 9. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for maintenance of the Sanitary Landfill.
- 10. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Sidewalk Maintenance.
- 11. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of Tucker Free Library.
- 12. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of Taxes.

- 13. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of the Henniker Athletic Program.
- 14. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate to support Henniker Youth Services.
- 15. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of the Community Action Program.
- 16. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$4,000.00 (Four thousand dollars and no cents) for the Heavy Equipment Capital Reserve Fund.
- 17. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for continuing work on the Property Tax Map.
- 18. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$65,000.00 (Sixty five thousand dollars and no cents) for the operating expenses of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. This sum to be funded by Sewer Assessments.
- 19. To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to engage outside Public Accountants to audit the Town Records for 1978 and raise and appropriate a sum not to exceed \$3,000.00 (Three thousand dollars and no cents) or take any other action.
- 20. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the purchase of a Fire Truck.
- 21. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972 for use as set-offs against budget appropriations for the following priority purpose and in the amount indicated or take any other action thereon:

Appropriation Fire Truck Amount \$75,000.00

- 22. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to accept on behalf of the Town a gift of land adjacent to the Athletic fields of the School District from Stuart Davis.
- 23. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the purchase of a Highway Sidewalk Tractor.
- 24. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the printing of a Town History. By Request
- 25. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the replacement of the Sewer Department Pickup Truck.
- 26. To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of seventy-five hundred dollars (\$7,500.00) from the accumulated income of the Edna Dean Proctor Fund to complete work on the Edna Dean Proctor room at the Tucker Free Library, and to provide furniture and equipment for the same.

  By Request

- 27. To see if the Town will vote to accept as a town maintained road the .5 mile section of Cross Road which lies in the Town of Henniker, which road runs between Colleague Road and Old Warner Road.

  By Petition
- 28. To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to accept a street to be known as the Ruffled Road when the street meets Town Specifications.
- 29. To see what action the Town will take with respect to relocating Bear Hill Road in the vicinity of the Richard Morgan residence about 2000 feet west of Cote Hill Road.

  By Request
- 30. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept and expend on behalf of the Town any grants or other funds available for Town purposes, including but not limited to disaster aid and highway funds which may now or hereafter be available from the United States Government, the State of New Hampshire or any federal, state or private individual or take any other action in relation thereto.
- 31. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Arthur Hall Land, Lot number 658.
- 32. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Etta Townes Land, Lot number 759.
- 33. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Lawson Smith Land, Lot number 660xx.
- 34. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Carter Land, Lot number 8.
- 35. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Hat Davis Land, Lot number 16.
- 36. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Levi Connor Land, Lot number 578.
- 37. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Robertson Land, Lot number 293A.
- 38. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and convey by deed at Public Auction or by sealed bid the title to the Naughton Lot, Lot number 483.
- 39. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the operating costs of the Henniker Rescue Squad.

40. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Henniker Rescue Squad for the purpose of purchasing 10 (ten) emergency mini monitors for alerting their personnel and a portable radio system for use on the ambulance.

By Petition

- 41. To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Rescue Squad Capital Reserve Ambulance Fund.

  By Request
- 42. To see if the Town would accept the Quaker District School, consequent upon its purchase by area residents, as a Henniker Historic Site. The Quaker School, built in 1867 and used until 1950, is the sole remaining building of its type not adapted to other purposes. The residents plan to care for the building.

  By Petition
- 43. To transact any other business that may properly come before this meeting.

Given under our hands and seal this sixth day of February in the year of our Lord nineteen hundred and seventy nine.

> Norman C. Parmenter David P. Currier William J. McIver Board of Selectmen

A true copy of Warrant - Attest:

Norman C. Parmenter David P. Currier William J. McIver Board of Selectmen

# COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1978

Budget Proposed 1979	\$ 14,500.00 20,000.00 1,000.00 15,000.00 8,000.00	65,000.00 15,500.00 26,500.00 1,300.00 150.00 150.00	6,000.00	1,662.17
Encumbered Budget to Propose 1979 1979		121.00		
Er Over- drafts	\$ 223.41 42.80 266.72	885.55	200.00	439.37
Unex- pended	\$ 2,542.39 \$	468.89 217.19 79.95 121.84 40.00	19,239.98	561.29
Expendi- ditures	\$ 10,957.61 18,278.00 2,542.80 13,584.09 7,766.72	70,525.98 13,167.85 24,919.81 585.11 28.16 60.00 179.00	5,625.00 812.00 2,700.00 9,866.95	8,109.48
Total Amount Available	\$ 13,500.00 \$ 10,957.61 \$ 2,542.39 \$ 18,054.59 18,278.00 2,500.00 2,542.80 14,520.00 13,884.09 935.91 7.500.00 7.766.72	7	5,625.00 812.00 2,500.00 29,106.93	8,670.77 110,560.58
Receipts and Reimb.	54.59	5,812.43 136.74 137.00 165.06		6,646.07 40,560.58
Appro- priations 1978	\$ 13,500.00 \$ 18,000.00 \$ 2,500.00 14,520.00 7,500.00	63,828.00 13,500.00 25,000.00 500.00 150.00 100.00 300.00	5,625.00 812.00 2,500.00 16,500.00	1,463.42
Encumbered Appro- From priations 1977 1978		PROP.	12, DGES	561.28
	GENERAL GOU'T Town Officers Sal. Town Officers Exp. Elec. & Registration Dist. Court	PROT. PERSONS & PROP. Police Dept. Fire Dept. Insurance Plan, Zoning, Master Plan Civil Defense Conservation Comm. Dog Officer HEALTH & SANI	Visit. Nurse Assoc. Concord Hospital Town Dump Sanitary Landfill HIGHWAYS & BRI	Town Road Aid Town Maintenance

9,000.00 1,500.00 3,000.00	1,000.00 6,500.00 800.00	3,200.00	1,000.00	3,000.00 1,221.44 1,981.00 2,000.00 474.16	7,000.00 49,015.00 42,000.00	
1,500.00						638.61
52.09		341.42		56.02	3,314.85	
1,228.56	1,880.00		169.30	712.84	3,673.00	
8,052.09	120.00 2,603.19 600.00	2,341.42 2,430.61	1,000.00	2,287.16 1,163.28 1,359.00 2,730.77 409.08	3,314.85 10,813.89 47,500.00 42,000.00	321.86
8,000.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 2,750.00	2,000.00 6,500.00 600.00	2,259.25	1,000.00	3,000.00 1,163.28 1,359.00 2,674.75 409.08	10,623.49 51,173.00 42,000.00	960.47
		259.25	5,731.32	16.50	5,623.49	
8,000.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 2,750.00	2,000.00 6,500.00 600.00	2,000.00	1,000.00	3,000.00 1,163.28 1,359.00 2,500.00 409.08	5,000.00 51,173.00 42,000.00	
				158.25		960.47
Street Lighting Sidewalk Maintenance Sidewalk Plowing LIBRARIES	PUBLIC WELFARE Town Poor Old Age Assistance PATRIOTIC PURPOSES Memorial Day	RECREATION Henniker Athletic Program Henniker Youth Services	Hydrant Rental Wastewater Treat. Plant	Damages & Legal Exp. Com. Action Program Cent. N.H. Reg. Planning Property Map N.H. Mun. Assoc.	DEBT SERVICE Int Sewer Notes Int T.A.N. Notes Int Long Term Notes Principal of Debt	CAPITAL OUTLAY Town Hall Ren.

4,000.00		75,000.00 6,000.00 18,000.00	3,000.00 8,000.00 5,000.00	7,500.00 4,550.00 598,003.77
5,300.00				7,500.00 4,550.00 \$14,640.67 \$547,762.78 \$76,943.03 \$639,346.48 \$590,064.17 \$47,906.69 \$ 6,183.99 \$ 7,559.61 \$598,003.77
				6,183.99
	5,333.00 253.74 6,552.00			47,906.69 \$
4,000.00	21,467.00 100.00 63,448.00			590,064.17 \$
5,300.00 4,000.00 400.00	26,800.00 353.74 70,000.00			539,346.48 \$
	11,800.00			\$76,943.03 \$c
5,300.00 4,000.00 400.00	15,000.00			\$547,762.78
	353.74	~	. 41) 26)	. 40)
Police Cruiser Pay. on Capital Res. Office Equipment SPEC. ARTICLES	Highway Truck Fire/Police Bldg. 3 New Loader	Fire Truck (Art. 20) Sidewalk Tractor (Art. 23 Hist. Soc. (Art. 25) Audir (Arr. 10)	Cap. Reserver Hescue (Art. 41) Truck-Sewer Dept. (Art. 26) Library Ren. (Art. 27)	s (A)

# MEMORANDUM OF AMOUNTS OF MONEY RAISED AND/OR APPROPRIATED

### AT ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 1978

Articl	e Purpose	Amount
3	Town Charges	\$105,543.08
+	Repair of Highway Bridges and repair/	
	purchase of Machinery	106,440.00
	(36,440.00 from Highway Subsidy)	
5	Police Department	63,828.00
6	Police cruiser	<b>5,300.00</b>
7	Fire Department	13,500.00
8	District Court	14,520.00
9	Concord Hospital	812.00
10	Class V Roads	1,463.42
11	Sidewalk Maintenance	1,500.00
12	Tucker Free Library	2,750.00
14	Henniker Athletic Program	2,000.00
15	Henniker Youth Services	2,000.00
16	Community Action Program	1,163.28
17	Heavy Equipment Capital Reserve	4,000.00
18	Town Tax Map	2,500.00
19	Office Equipment	400.00
20	Wastewater Treatment Plant	61,810.00
21	Sanitary Landfill	16,500.00
23	Tucker Free Library (Edna Dean Proctor	
	Fund)	5,000.00
24	Highway Loader	70,000.00
	(Revenue Sharing 45,000.00, Straw 40%	
	Fund 15,000.00, Taxation 10,000.00)	
25	Replacement Highway Truck (Revenue	
	Sharing Funds)	15,000.00
	TOTAL	\$496,029.78

A true record of all amounts of money raised and/or appropriated at Town Meeting, March 15, 1978.

Attest: Janet M. Murdough, Town Clerk

### RECORD OF AFFIRMATIVE VOTES

### AT ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 1978

Article 2 VOTED, that the town accept the reports of Town Officers, Library Trustees, Trustees of Trust Funds and other committees as printed in the Town Report and (as amended) that the Selectmen make an annual report to appear as part of the Town Report which would describe the accomplishments of the year and their aims for the ensuing year.

Article 3 VOTED, that the town raise nad appropriate the sum of \$105,543.08 (one hundred five thousand five hundred forty three and eight cents) to defray town charges for the ensuing year, divided as follows:

Town Officers Salaries	\$ 13,500.00
Town Officers Expenses	18,000.00
Election & Registration	2,500.00
Town Hall & Building Maintenance	7,500.00
Insurance	25,000.00
Planning & Zoning	500.00
Civil Defense	150.00
Conservation Commission	100.00
Dog Officer	300.00
Town Dump	2,500.00
Street Lighting	8,000.00
Sidewalk Plowing	2,000.00
Town Poor	2,000.00
Old Age Assistance	6,500 00
Memorial Day	600.00
Hydrant Rental	1,000.00
Damages & Legal Expenses	3,000.00
Advertising & Regional Association	1,768.08
Interest on Tax Anticipation Notes	5,000.00
Visiting Nurse	5,625.00

and that the Town Officers be paid at the following rates: Auditors, Ballot Clerks, Fence Viewers, Health Officers, Selectmen, Supervisors of Checklist, and Surveyors of Wood and Lumber at \$2.50 per hour; Moderator at \$2.75 per hour; Treasurer at \$1,000.00 per year; Tax Collector and Sewer Rents Collector at an annual salary of \$6,000.00 and Town Clerk at \$1,500.00 per year; and that the funds appropriated for the Henniker Recreation Program be earmarked for the support of Summer Swimming Program, Henniker Community Basketball Teams, Peewee League Baseball Program and Henniker Town Team Basketball and that payments be made through the Selectmen of Henniker and by the Town Treasurer.

Article 4 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$106,440.00 (one hundred six thousand four hundred forty dollars and no cents) for the repair of highway bridges and repair or purchase of machinery; that \$36,440.00 (thirty six thousand four hundred forty dollars and no cents) come from the Highway Subsidy Fund and that \$70,000.00 (seventy thousand dollars and no cents) be for highway expenses.

Article 5 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the amended sum of \$63,828.00 (sixty three thousand eight hundred twenty eight dollars and no cents) and to adopt for the Henniker Police full time employees the State Law Enforcement Labor Grade Schedules as follows:

Department Head Grade Level 19
Full Time Officers Grade Level 15
Full Time Trainee Grade Level 12

and all schedules to be increased as state levels are increased, and subject to revision at future town meetings.

Article 6 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$5,300.00 (five thousand three hundred dollars and no cents) for the purchase of a new cruiser.

Article 7 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$13,500.00 (thirteen thousand five hundred dollars and no cents) for the maintenance of the Fire Department.

Article 8 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$14,520.00 (fourteen thousand five hundred twenty dollars and no cents) for the operation of the District Court.

Article 9 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$812.00 (eight hundred twelve dollars and no cents) for the support of Concord Hospital.

Article 10 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,463.42 (one thousand four hundred sixty three dollars and forty two cents) for State Aid construction of Class V roads.

Article 11 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,500.00 (one thousand and five hundred dollars and no cents) for maintenance of sidewalks.

Article 12 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$2,750.00 (two thousand seven hundred fifty dollars and no cents) for the support of the Tucker Free Library for the ensuing year.

Article 13 VOTED, that the Town vote to authorize the Select-

men to borrow money in anticipation of taxes.

Article 14 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$2,000.00 (two thousand dollars and no cents) for the support of the Henniker Athletic Program.

Article 15 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$2,000.00 (two thousand dollars and no cents) for the support of the Henniker Youth Services.

Article 16 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,163.28 (one thousand one hundred sixty three dollars and twenty eight cents) for the support of Community Action Program.

Article 17 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$4,000.00 (four thousand dollars and no cents) for the Heavy Equipment Capital Reserve Fund.

Article 18 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$2,500.00 (two thousand five hundred dollars and no cents) toward completing the Town Tax Map.

Article 19 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$400.00 (four hundred dollars and no cents) for replacement of obsolete office equipment.

Article 20 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$61,810.00 (sixty one thousand eight hundred ten dollars and no cents) for the operating expenses of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. This amount is to be funded by Sewer Assessments.

Article 21 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$16,500.00 (sixteen thousand five hundred dollars and no cents) for the operation and maintenance of the new Sanitary Landfill.

Article 23 VOTED, that the sum of \$5,000.00 (five thousand dollars and no cents) be appropriated from the Edna Dean Proctor Fund for renovation in the Tucker Free Library.

Article 24 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the sum of \$70,000.00 (seventy thousand dollars and no cents) for the replacement of the highway loader. \$45,000.00 (forty five thousand dollars and no cents) to come from Revenue Sharing, \$15,000.00 (fifteen thousand dollars and no cents) from the Straw 40% Fund and \$10,000.00 (ten thousand dollars and no cents) be raised by taxation.

Article 25 VOTED, that the Town raise and appropriate the

sum of \$15,000.00 (fifteen thousand dollars and no cents) for the replacement of a highway truck. This sum is to come from Revenue Sharing Funds.

Article 26 VOTED, that the Town authorize the withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972 for use as set-offs against budget appropriations for the preceding two Articles.

Article 27 VOTED, that the Town authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept and expend on behalf of the town any grants or other funds available for town purposes, including but not limited to disaster aid and highway funds which may now or hereafter be available from the United States Government, State of New Hampshire or private individuals.

Article 28. VOTED, that the Town authorize the Selectmen to accept 2 (two) streets located in Tanglewood Subdivision when they meet town specifications. These streets to be known as Tanglewood Drive and Westwood Lane.

Article 29 VOTED, that the Town authorize the Selectmen to accept a street to be known as Pine Hill Road when it meets town specifications.

Article 30 VOTED, that the Town grant the Selectmen permission to convey title to Lot 115, located on the East Side of Ray Road, formerly the property of Mr. and Mrs. A. E. Mascioli that was deeded to the Town on August 11, 1977. Subject to repayment of all prior taxes, interests and costs.

Article 31 VOTED, to indefinitely postpone action on this article, which reads as follows with two amendments: that the Town authorize the Selectmen to transfer such lien or to convey such property by deed; either by public auction or sale by advertised sealed bids. S. C. Bennett's amendment: that the Town retain the Lawson Smith land and the Arthur Hall land, pending further study. G. Sanborn's amendment: adds "upon concurrence by Planning Board" to the original article.

Article 32 VOTED, that the Town authorize the Selectmen to accept a continuation of Juniper Ridge Road extension when it meets town specifications.

Article 33 VOTED, that the Selectmen, Park Board and Trustees of Trust Funds be directed to petition the Probate Court as follows:

A. To combine the Leander A. Cogswell Azalea Park Fund and the D. W. and E. L. Cogswell General Park Fund into one fund to be called the Cogswell Park Fund.

B. To permit the School District to operate and maintain the Cogswell Athletic Field, and to direct the expenditure to trust income from the Leander A. Cogswell Athletic Fund, provided such operation and expenditure to be consistent with the terms of the original trust.

Article 34 VOTED, to direct the Selectmen to appoint a committee to determine a recommended salary schedule for all full time town employees.

VOTED, that the Town show intent to accept the Stuart Davis Property in behalf of the School District as soon as it may be resolved by indicating that preference by a consensus vote.

VOTED, to direct the Planning Board to appoint a committee of town residents to do whatever is necessary - hearings, questionnaires, studies - to come up with a comprehensive plan for the consideration of the voters by the next Town Meeting.

A true copy Attest: Janet Murdough

Town Clerk

# TOWN VALUATION FOR THE YEAR 1978

Land - Improved and Unimproved Buildings	\$ 7,588,706 18,478,700	
Factory Buildings	383,800	
Public Utilities, Electric	706,060	
House Trailers, Mobile Homes & Travel	542.025	
Trailers	543,035	
Vehicles	16,500	
Boats & Launches	18,300	
Total Valuation before exemptions allo	wed	\$27,735,101
Elderly Exemptions	150,000	
School Dining Room, etc.	150,000	
Water Pollution	35,500	
Total exemptions allowed		335,500
Net Valuation on which tax rate is compu	ıted	\$27,399,601
1978 tax rate \$27.90 per thousand at 71%	equalized val	uation

# SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY

Town Hall and Land	\$ 12,500.00
Knights of Pythias Hall	24,000.00
Library and Land	94,000.00
Furniture and Equipment	35,000.00
	,
Fire Department, Land and Buildings	33,000.00
Equipment	33,000.00
Highway Dept., Land, Equipment and Buildings	88,000.00
Police Department, Equipment	4,500.00
Water Supply	200,000.00
Schools, Land, Equipment	425,000.00
Wastewater Treatment Facilities	3,000,000.00
Parks, Commons and Playgrounds	10,000.00
Arthur Hall, Land No. 658	1,000.00
Etta Townes, Lot No. 759	600.00
Hardy Place, No. 50	800.00
Preston Lot, No. 48	800.00
Lawson Smith, Land No. 660XX	800.00
Carter, Land No. 8	800.00
Hat Davis, Land No. 16	200.00
Levi Connor, Land No. 578	200.00
Childs Lot, No. 402	200.00
Gammel Land, No. 129 (2/3 interest)	300.00
Robertson Land, No. 293A	400.00
School District, Lot No. 241A	200.00
Childs H. Clement, Lot No. 708B	1,800.00
Naughton, Lot No. 483	6,400.00
Rescue Squad Land & Building	38,000.00
H. Ayer Lot, No. 352B	400.00

\$4,011,900.00

# GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

# AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1978

### ASSETS

Cash: In Checking Account Invested Funds Change Fund	\$110,299.33 88,591.76 100.00	
Capital Reserve Funds: Heavy Equip. Fund Police Cruiser	26,667.58 122.75	<b>\$198,99</b> 1.09
Accounts Receivable: Advance to Sewer Dep Due from Sewer Const. Acct.	t. 7,915.00 77,418.00	26,790.33
Taxes Receivable: Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes Land Use Change Tax Tax Liens	135,754.06 3,610.00 659.66 30.00 42,804.90	85,333.00
		182,858.62
TOTAL ASSETS		\$493,973.04
LIABILITIES, RESERVES & FUND B	ALANCE	
Liabilities & Reserves: Bond & Debt Retirement Payable Yield Tax Security Deposits Special Appropriations: Town Hall Renovations Police Cruiser	\$ 638.61 5,300.00	\$ 1,936.11 3,254.20
U		5,938.61
Unappropriated Federal Funds: Revenue Sharing School District Tax Payable Capital Reserve Funds		55,235.27 304,474.00 26,667.58
TOTAL LIABILITIES Current Surplus		\$397,505.77 96,467.27
TOTAL LIABILITIES, RESERVES & FUND BALANCE		\$493,973.04

# TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT JANUARY 1, 1978 TO DECEMBER 31, 1978

DEBITS	1978	1977	1976
Taxes Committed to Collector			
Property Tax	\$757,756.84	\$ 92,199.83 \$	95.36
Resident Tax	16,600.00	4,840.00	1,850.00
National Bank Stock Tax	52.90		
Yield Tax	1,116.96	10,183.48	125.04
Land Use Change Tax	30.00		
Overpayments - Property Tax	32.75	3.57	
Resident Tax	20.00		
Interest & Penalties Collected			
Property Tax	97.24	.,	24.92
Resident Tax	44.00	170.00	15.00
TOTAL DEBITS	\$775,750.69	\$111,857.77	5 2,110.32
ODEDITO			
CREDITS			
Remitted to Treasurer:			
Property Tax	\$620,834.56	\$ 91,941.75	95.36
Resident Tax	12,620.00	1,650.00	150.00
National Bank Stock Tax	52.90		
Yield Tax	457.30	9,113.30	125.04
Interest Collected	97.24	4,460.89	24.92
Penalties Collected	44.00		15.00
Abatements: Property Tax	1,200.97		
Resident Tax	390.00	700.00	1,700.00
Uncollected Taxes Dec. 31, 1978			
Property Tax	135,754.06		
Resident Tax	3,610.00	•	
Yield Tax	659.66	1,070.18	
Land Use Change Tax	30.00		
	\$775,750.69	\$111,857.77	\$ 2,110.32

# SUMMARY OF TAX SALES ACCOUNTS

JANUARY 1, 1978 TO DECEMBER 31, 1978

	Tax Sa	ales on Acc	count of Le	evies of: Prev.
Balance of Unredeemed	1977	1976	1975	YEARS
Taxes - January 1, 1978 Taxes Sold to Town During	\$	\$27,374.11	\$17,925.59	\$242.32
Current Fiscal Year	42,670.39			
Int. Collected after Sale	120.43	506.37	3,904.67	6.94
Redemption Costs	14.08	14.08	39.80	3.15
TOTAL DEBITS	\$42,804.90	\$27,894.56	\$21,870.06	\$252.41
Remittances to Treasurer				
During Year: Redemptions	\$ 6,378.37	\$ 5,095.35	\$17,683.97	\$
Int. & Costs after Sale	134.51	520.45		
Abat. during Year		587.96		
Deeded to Town during Y	Zear .		180.32	
Unredeemed Taxes -				
December 31, 1978	36,292.02	21,690.80	61.30	242.32
	\$42,804.90	\$27,894.56	\$21,870.06	\$252.41

Janet M. Murdough
Tax Collector

# TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

Automobile Permits Dog Licenses UCC Filings Miscellaneous	\$ 66,767.00 1,423.05 657.00 307.72
Total Remitted to Treasurer	\$ 69,154.77 \$ 69,154.77

Respectfully submitted,

Janet M. Murdough

Town Clerk

# TOWN TREASURER'S REPORT JANUARY 1, 1978 TO DECEMBER 31, 1978

# GENERAL FUND

Balance on hand January 1, 1978	\$189,862.30
Received from Selectmen:	
Disrict Court	18,000.00
Police Services	104.00
	1,807.00
Parking Fines	
Towing Charges	2,915.00
Insurance Accident Reports	388.00
Pistol Permits	48.00
Restitution for Damages	50.43
R. T. Lyman Gift to Police Dept. (1977)	500.00
Highway, Sale of Truck	11,800.00
Services (plowing, mowing, etc.)	1,239.30
T. R. A.	6,646.07
Sale of Gas	578.64
Sale of Parts & Supplies	619.90
Insurance Reimb. for Damage	85.00
Restitution for Damages	172.00
Fire Dept., State Forest Fire Refund	61.74
Fire Reimbursement	75.00
H.Y.S., Receipts	259.25
Sale of Landfill Stickers	160.00
New England College, Landfill Charges	<b>842.</b> 70
Sale of Lumber on Town Lots	8,216.64
Rent of Grange Hall	1.00
Sale of old Town Hall Doors	10.00
Resale of Property (Mascioli)	845.74
Reimbursement, Town Poor Waste Water Treatment	100.00
	5,851.23
Bond & Debt (overpayment)	42.83
Retirement	3.98
Welfare	250.00
Blue Cross Blue Shield	137.00
Credit, N.H. Explosives & Machinery	25.90
Legal Fees	10.00
Public Hearings	230.16
Timber Security Bonds	4,064.20
State, Highway Subsidy	36,047.80
Gas Tax	1,598.23
Business Profits Tax	25,631.40
Rooms & Meals Tax	16,399.76
Interest & Dividends Tax	23,210.03
Bank Tax	5,661.53
Forest Land Reimb.	118.82

Flood Reimb. State Aid, Water Pollution	13,276.36 43,061.00
U.S. Treasury, Partial Payment - Sewer	70,000.00
Revenue Sharing	60,000.00
Loans, Anticipation of Taxes	400,000.00
Interest on Savings & Cert. of Deposit	5,623.49
Waste Water Treatment Account	3,000.00
Miscellaneous (copier, sale of maps, etc.)	111.37
TOTAL Received from Selectmen	\$769,880.50
Received from Trustees of Trust Funds:	
Straw 40% Fund	15,000.00
James R. Straw Fund	5,668.61
Constantine Fund	57.12
George W. Noyes Fund	27.41
Ida Badger Fund	180.98
TOTAL Received from Trust Funds	\$20,934.12
Received from Janet Murdough, Town Clerk	
Motor Vehicle Permits	66,767.00
Dog Licenses & Penalties	1,423.05
U.C.C.	657.00
Miscellaneous	307.72
TOTAL Received from Town Clerk	69,154.77
Received from Janet Murdough, Tax Collector	
1978 Property Tax	620,834.56
1977 Property Tax	91,941.75
1976 Property Tax	95.36
1978 Yield Tax	457.30
1977 Yield Tax	9,113.30
1976 Yield Tax	125.04
Interest, Property & Yield Tax	4,558.13
1978 Resident Tax 1977 Resident Tax	12,620.00
1977 Resident Tax 1976 Resident Tax	1,650.00
Resident Tax Penalties	150.00 229.00
National Bank Stock	52.90
Tax Sales Redeemed (incl. interest & costs)	33,767.21
TOTAL Received from Tax Collector	775,594.55
TOTAL RECEIPTS	\$1,825,426.24
TOTAL PAYMENTS	1,715,138.33
Balance on hand December 31, 1978	\$ 110,287.91

# WASTEWATER TREATMENT ACCOUNT

Balance on hand January 1, 1978	\$ 17,935.06
Received from Tax Collector: Sewer Rents Interest Insurance Reimb., Employee Illness	94,133.51 1,160.75 80.00
TOTAL Received from Tax Collector	\$ 95,374.26
TOTAL RECEIPTS TOTAL PAYMENTS	\$113,309.32 72,371.32
Balance on hand December 31, 1978	\$ 40,938.00
SUMMARY	
Balance in Savings Banks: Shawmut Sewer Account Special Sewer Account Straw 60% Fund Constantine Fund Revenue Sharing Sewer Maintenance	\$ 6,054.74 24,462.93 7,581.96 151.12 55,235.27 2,687.70
TOTAL in Savings Accounts Balance in Checking Accounts: General Fund Waste Water Treatment Account	\$ 96,173.72 110,287.91 40,938.00
TOTAL on hand December 31, 1978	\$247,399.63

E. Benjamin Ayer Treasurer

# STATEMENT OF PAYMENTS

# TOWN OFFICERS SALARIES

Ayer, E. Benjamin - Treasurer	\$ 1,000.00
Currier, David P Selectman	298.75
Durr, John J Selectman	410.00
Hadley, Arthur S. Jr Selectman	196.25
McIver, William J Selectman	291.25
Murdough, Janet M Town Clerk and	
Tax Collector	7,500.00
Parmenter, Norman C Selectman	636.25
Social Security	625.11
•	

### TOTAL EXPENSES

\$ 10,957.61

# TOWN OFFICERS EXPENSES

Durr, Dianne P Secretary 7,530.0 Pennock, Jeanette P Secretary Sub. 144.0 Connor, Judith 30.0 Murdough, Janet P Expenses 75.0 Parmenter, Norman C Expenses 95.0 Ayer, E. Benjamin - Expenses 84.0 N. H. Town Clerk's Association 10.0	50 75 57 50 50 50
Connor, Judith Murdough, Janet P Expenses Parmenter, Norman C Expenses Ayer, E. Benjamin - Expenses 84.	00 75 57 00 00 50
Murdough, Janet P Expenses 75 Parmenter, Norman C Expenses 95 Ayer, E. Benjamin - Expenses 84.	57 00 00 50
Parmenter, Norman C Expenses 95 Ayer, E. Benjamin - Expenses 84.	00 00 50
Ayer, E. Benjamin - Expenses 84.0	00 50 50
N. H. Town Clerk's Association 10.0	50 50
	50
Hatlack, Edward - Auditor 37.	-
Savage, John - Auditor 57.5	50
Cummiskey, J. Kenneth - Auditor 27.5	
N. H. Association of Assessing Officials 20.0	00
Robert Estey 2,600.0	00
Mal Cameron 198.0	00
Wheeler & Clark 68.1	1
New Hampshire Savings Bank 40.0	00
3M Business Products Sales 68.3	33
Red Jacket Motor Inn 89.7	20
Branham Publishing Company 15.9	0
Adolphus Holton 15.0	00
Land Vest - Master Plan Committee 128.6	53
George Sanborn 21.0	00
Wayne Roswell 150.0	00
Clarence Fitch 200.0	00
Myron J. Hazen 225.0	00
Dianne Durr - Expenses 5.4	10
Brown & Saltmarsh, Inc. 229.4	9
Continental Telephone 991.0	9
Jones Office Equipment Company 93.7	7
Postmaster, Henniker (Inc. Petty Cash) 1,269.9	2
Henniker Pharmacy 11.3	
Phelps Photo 10.4	8
Central Paper Products 24.5	7

Monitor Publishing	90.1+	
Merrimack County Registry of Deeds	137.25	
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire	68.06	
Edmunds	6.26	
N. H. Municipal Association	43.50	
N. H. Tax Collector's Association	18.00	
Pherus Press	2,265.00	
New England College Print Shop	114.20	
Messenger	153.00	
Retirement	235.81	
Social Security	579.73	
TOTAL EXPENSES	\$	18,278.00
ELECTION AND DECICED ATION		
ELECTION AND REGISTRATION		
Daniel's Pub	30.10	
Pop Schultz Market	38.00	
Pherus Press	133.60	
Sal's Town House	32.50	
Brunnhoelzl, Charlotte	18.60	
	11.15	
Stan's Superette	21.25	
Pennock, Jeanette		
Messenger	18.00	
Reade, Charles	25.00	
Hill, George III	25.00	
Schillinger, Jolene	100.00	
Evans Printing	49.00	
Edmunds	76.28	
Greenly, Dana F.	489.50	
LaBar, Fred	95.00	
Klare, William	55.00	
Klare, Anita	55.00	
Connor, Judith	58.75	
Cunliffe, Richard	26.25	
Ryan, John Jr.	82.50	
Damour, William	104.50	
Davison, Percy Jr.	160.00	
Greenly, Dana	187.67	
Edmunds, Hattie	206.50	
Merrimack Farmers Exchange	382.27	
Social Security	61.38	
TOTAL EXPENSES		2,542.80
		2,5 (2.00
HENNIKER DISTRICT COURT		
Sterling, Robert W Justice	6,800.00	
Pennock, Jeanette R Clerk	5,620.00	
Sterling, Walter C.	100.00	
Scheffy, Brackett	50.00	
Greenhalge, Frederick	223.71	

Gasoline

Social Security	790.38	
TOTAL EXPENSES		13,584.09
TOWN HALL AND OTHER TOWN	BUILDINGS	
Public Service Company of N. H.	1,963.87	
Ayer & Goss	3,249.69	
Central Paper Products	49.24	
Murdough, Daymon	35.15	
White, Elsie	206.38	
Pennock, Richard	42.76	
Edmunds	100.35	
Cogswell Spring Water Works	104.00	
Electrolux	124.00	
Stan's Superette	7.80	
Gilbert Électric	1,870.98	
Social Security	12.50	
TOTAL EXPENSES		7,766.72
POLICE DEPARTMENT		
Hassler, Thomas W Chief	16 706 52	
	16,706.52	
Chagnon, Donald L Sgt.	14,421.18	
Beasley, John D Patrolman	8,316.38	
Senecal, Richard E Sgt.	4,383.06	
Ashford, Larry - Special	1,402.00	
Gould, Edward S Special	1,714.37	
Hogg, Charles R Special	1,731.82	
Randall, Steven - Special	1,188.36	
Marsland, Philip - Special	446.37	
Boyle, Michael W Special	20.00	
Lape, Charles II - Special	16.00	
Pennock, Jeanette - Clerk	810.90	
Continental Telephone of N. H.	3,285.15	
Central Paper Products	45.43	
Animal Rescue League	20.00	
Brown & Saltmarsh, Inc.	20.20	
Goodyear Wholesale Tire	181.04	
Henniker Automotive	1,777.15	
State of New Hampshire	110.25	
Davison Shell Service	1,664.28	
Retirement	3,155.20	
Social Security	463.05	
Henniker Pharmacy	102.95	
Edmunds	37.07	
Henniker Glassworks	221.08	
Carlson's Motor Sales	915.62	
America Copy	91.80	
Brown, Francis, M.D.	20.00	
O 1	20.00	

2,375.38

Pop Schultz Market	67.75	
JTN Distributing	37.52	
Richard A. Sherburn, Inc.	123.60	
Mack's Mens Shop	451.68	
Communications Systems Center	<b>79.9</b> 0	
Firestone Stores	415.90	
Cheshire Oil Company	1,137.32	
Everett Chamberlain	38.56	
Merrimack Farmers	16.56	
John D. Beasley	15.00	
Municipal Police Institute	42.22	
Wyman's Chevrolet	295.58	
Nash's Auto Outlet	11.04	
Henniker Police Department	500.00	
Jones Office Equipment	58.00	
N.H. Association of Police Chiefs	10.00	
Henniker District Court	68.23	
Chagnon, Donald - Expenses	10.50	
Beasley, Deborah	8.00	
Equity Publishing Company	75.00	
Marshall Rowe Jeweler	2.50	
Hogg, Charles	29.50	
New England College	7.50	
Concord Camera	20.31	
Texaco, Inc.	1,152.60	
Sterling's Exxon	165.60	
Postage	43.00	
	<del></del>	
TOTAL EXPENSES		70,525.98
PLANNING AND ZONING		
Monitor Publishing Company	225.77	
Messenger	13.50	
Postage	43.00	
New England College - Printing	24.40	
Spakoski, Edward - Reimbursement	30.65	
Brown & Saltmarsh, Inc.	55.60	
Morse, Nina C Reimbursement	153.44	
N.H. Municipal Association	25.00	
Sir Speedy	13.75	
TOTAL EXPENSES		585.11
INSURANCE		
Davis & Towle Agency	20,315.54	
Blue Cross-Blue Shield	2,672.27	
Stuart Smith East	1,932.00	
TOTAL EXPENSES		24,919.81
TOTAL EXPENSES CIVIL DEFENSE		24,919.81
		24,919.81

# HEALTH DEPARTMENT

HEALTH DELAKTMENT		
Visiting Nurse Association of Concord Concord Hospital	5,625.00 812.00	
TOTAL EXPENSES		6,437.00
FIRE DEPARTMENT		
Ayer, E. Benjamin - Chief Blanchard, Donald Brunnhoelzl, Frederick Jr. Brunnhoelzl, Frederick III Buxton, Philip Connor, Frederick Connor, James Connor, Marshall Connor, Steven Damour, Charles E. Damour, Donat Damour, Ernest Damour, Louis Damour, Michael Fitch, Clarence	379.00 119.00 91.30 91.25 14.50 56.08 54.75 247.78 206.70 303.53 118.25 174.25 94.88 109.50 145.58	
French, Richard A. Jr.	82.00	
Gilbert, Peter Gilbert, Raymond J. Mansur, Thomas	133.75 112.50 191.00	
Marsland, Philip McGraw, William Michie, Alan	124.25 96.75 19.50	
Patenaude, Rodney Walker, Bernard Jr. Wright, Cecil	72.75 72.50 111.25	
Goss, Donald R. Sr. Goss, Donald R. Jr.	43.05 12.75	
McKean, Welton Gould, Robert Goss, Ronald C.	179.63 7.75 14.00	
Wilson, Lee Patten, Mike	6.00 6.00	
Wilson, Leon Patenaude, Stuart	6.00 6.00	
Buxton, Philip Jr. Fitch, James Lemire, Edward	9.00 6.00 6.00	
Tandiff, Gordon Cole, Jim Merrill, Dan	6.00 6.00 6.00	
Ayer, E. Banjamin, Expenses Connor, Marshall, Expenses Damour, Michael, Expenses	325.00 104.00 4.00	

Damour, Charles, Expenses	154.00	
McKean, Welton, Expenses	8.50	
Connor, Frederick, Expenses	4.00	
Fitch, Clarence, Expenses	8.50	
Motorola Inc.	2,230.00	
Gasoline	9.40	
Steven Connor	403.00	
R & R Communications	154.95	
Continental Telephone	2,038.09	
N.H. Fire & Safety Equipment Co.	1,416.78	
Ayer & Goss	446.77	
City of Concord	17.50	
Stan's Superette	18.86	
Sanel Auto Parts	589.05	
Henniker Automotive	131.74	
Gilbert Electric	92.59	
Western Avenue Garage	16.95	
Lakes Region Mutual Aid	40.00	
Edmunds	17.10	
Davison, Mark	11.25	
Social Security	186.91	
Wright Communications	127.30	
Merrimack Farmers	16.33	
Baldwin's Market	15.78	
Henniker Fire Department	434.00	
Phelps Photo	63.50	
Henniker Pharmacy	1.40	
Wyman's Chevrolet	128.88	
Century Auto Supply	173.98	
Firestone Stores	256.28	
Shepard Auto Supply	20.78	
TOTAL PERPENDICA		42.000.0
TOTAL EXPENSES		13,209.9
OWN DUMP		
Ryan, John Jr.	2,032.46	
Morse, Allen F.	71.55	
Social Security	59.80	
Public Service Company of N.H.	66.89	
Continental Telephone of N.H.	56.40	
Ayer & Goss, Inc.	133.90	
Edmunds	1.00	
Ayer, E. Benjamin	24.00	
Connor, Marshall	6.00	
Damour, Louis	6.00	
Damour, Donat		
	6.00	
Damour, Charles	6.00	
Brunnhoelzl, Frederick III	6.00	
M 1 DL 11	(00	

T

Marsland, Philip Gilbert, Peter

6.00 6.00

McKean, Welton Bennett, Stephen C.	12.00 200.00	
TOTAL EXPENSES		2,700.00
SANITARY LANDFILL		
Brown, John L. Gould, Robert W. Sanborn, Douglas Ryan, John Jr. Morse, Allen F. Social Security Public Service Company of N.H. Continental Telephone of N.H. Henniker Construction Company Henniker Crushed Stone Ayer & Goss, Inc. Messenger James McComish Henniker Pharmacy Contoocook Valley Advertiser	12.50 1,439.76 1,737.64 1,949.44 166.95 200.54 57.41 113.15 72.00 250.06 1,054.66 99.00 1,485.00 .59	
Reprographics Stephen C. Bennett	37.00 1,181.25	
TOTAL EXPENSES	1,101.27	9,866.95

# HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT - WINTER MAINTENANCE

Goss, Ronald C.	2,980.40
Brown, John L.	5,423.25
Gould, Robert W.	5,925.26
Roy, James	1,886.53
Sanborn, Douglas	3,292.13
Hauptman, John	1,150.13
Ward, Kenneth W.	1,770.76
Pennock, Richard	236.58
McComish, Malcolm	1,214.96
McKean, Welton	276.76
Murdough, Daymon A.	706.50
Clement, Joseph	193.33
Marsland, Philip	81.40
Goss, Donald Jr.	360.21
French, Richard A.	360.21
Goss, Donald Sr.	113.96
Goss, Irving	32.56
St. Laurence, Stephen	145.00
Bagnell, Daniel	140.00
Woodbury, Kenneth	72.50
Ayer, E. Benjamin	28.49
French, Richard Jr.	20.35
Michie, Alan	65.12

# TOTAL EXPENSES

26,555.76

# HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT - SUMMER MAINTENANCE

Brown, John L.	5,712.50
Gould, Robert W.	4,413.31
Sanborn, Douglas	4,200.28
Roy, James	4,955.66
Ward, Kenneth W.	1,222.88
Pennock, Richard	739.15
McComish, Malcolm	160.00
State of New Hampshire	1,315.00

#### TOTAL EXPENSES

22,718.78

#### HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT - GENERAL MAINTENANCE

Allied Chemical	667.28
Aucoin, Herve	2,997.50
Ayer & Goss, Inc.	4,778.01
Central Paper Products	45.43
Continental Telephone of N.H.	422.26
E. W. Sleeper	3,817.43
Edmunds	121.60
Granite State Minerals	8,197.48
Henniker Automotive	214.72
Henniker Crushed Stone	1,177.20
Howe Brothers	87.55
Jordan Milton Machinery, Inc.	558.45
Keats, Inc.	458.11
Merrimack Farmers Exchange	127.35
N. H. Bituminous	2,432.12
N. H. Explosives	34.30
N. H. Welding Supply	110.86
Oxford Chemical	154.81
Penn-Hampshire Lubricants	215.12
Public Service Company of N.H.	1,067.63
R. C. Hazelton, Inc.	3,022.81
Sanel Auto Parts, Inc.	1,741.92
Texaco, Inc.	6,100.34
Western Avenue Garage	31.85
Wilson's Wagon Shop	215.00
Century Auto Supply	441.73
J. Brown, Mileage	1,225.50
Ronald C. Goss, Mileage	200.00
Retirement	1,504.18
Social Security	3,497.25
Hogland's Auto Body	51.00
Davison Shell Service	6.25

Volen Marona Inc	220 70
Kelton Motors, Inc.	228.79
Valley Transportation	112.60
Material Flow, Inc.	387.69
Phelps Photo	194.08
Raymond Daniels	82.50
F. S. Willey Company	66.42
N. H. Good Roads Association	10.00
Registry of Deeds	6.15
3M Business Products	68.33
Donovan Spring & Equipment Co.	632.99
Panbro Sales	54.90
Chappel Tractor Sales	25.00
Daniel's Drilling & Blasting	127.05
Town of Hillsboro	280.00
T. J. Touhey & Sons, Inc.	55.00
Evans Radio	23.53
Union Leader Corporation	36.96
Contoocook Valley Advertiser	15.00
B-B Chain	600.00
Henniker Machine	16.15
Metra-Chem Corporation	517.01
Monitor Publishing Corp.	12.26
Steven St. Laurence	126.00
Standard Uniform Rental	24.25
Wyman's Chevrolet	337.25
Wastewater Treatment Plant	3,000.00
JTN Distributing	12.94
Nash's Auto Outlet	34.86
Goodyear Wholesale Tire	798.88
McComish, James	1,780.00
Daymon A. Murdough	54.90
Car-Go	925.72
Mr. Gee's Tire	1,032.22
Knoxland Equipment	71.95
Baldwin's Market	9.26
Henniker Glassworks	160.91
Barrett Equipment	12.16
Pike Industries	225.38
Rice's Tire Center	386.68
Freddie's Automotive	105.00
Stan's Superette	2.35
Henniker Construction	1,013.25
Northeastern Culvert Corp.	927.74
Communications Systems Center	73.74
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire	74.12
Genest Ford	184.58
Ross Express	20.55
Curtis Rowe	1,125.00
Void 1977 Check	- 70.00

# TOWN ROAD AID

Brown, John L.	2,525.00	
Gould, Robert W.	1,681.47	
Sanborn, Douglas	1,700.33	
	739.26	
Roy, James		
State of New Hampshire	1,463.42	
TOTAL EXPENSES		8,109.48
HENNIKER YOUTH SERVICES		
C III 'I D' I	204.50	
Carol Hamilton - Reimbursement	384.50	
Patricia Brown - Reimbursement	235.00	
Tipp Novelty Company	33.20	
Pole & Pedal	94.50	
Joyce Johnson	44.50	
Doris Brown	3.00	
Valley Transportation	597.75	
Edmunds	38.27	
Henniker Pharmacy	200.53	
Rudy Hok	50.00	
Sari Wetherill	50.00	
Nancy Greenblatt	6.88	
Swank Motion Pictures	580.00	
Betty Sukas	12.48	
Larry Farese	100.00	
TOTAL EXPENSES		2,430.61
HENNIKER ATHLETICS		
Baseball - Henniker Pharmacy	768.93	
Paul Daum - Reimbursement	151.00	
Newport Sunshine League	150.00	
1 to whose banding Beagae		
		1,069.93
Basketball - Duane Clement - Reimb.	250.00	-,
Davis & Towle Agency	90.80	
Tri Mt. League	40.00	
Henniker Tri Mt. League	230.00	
Merrimack Valley League	10.00	
Meniniack valley Deague	10.00	
		620.80
Swimming - Carol Hamilton	150.00	020.00
Douglas Allen	6.00	
H. R. Colby	45.00	
Edmunds	13.35	
Merrimack Farmers	152.24	
Corriveau Routhier	120.00	
Continua itoudilei	120.00	
		486.59

TOTAL EXPENSES		2,341.42
ABATEMENTS AND REFUNDS		
McAllister, Arthur Spakoski, Edward - Property Koretz, Seymour - Property Falk, Richard S Motor Vehicle Gracia, John A Motor Vehicle Conn. Valley Chipping Co Motor Vehicle Gregg, Robert E Property	9.00 111.80 151.56 2.50 10.00 9.00 14.37	
Lord, Perry D Motor Vehicle Weston, Thomas Jr Motor Vehicle Goss Lumber - Timber Sitka, Raymond - Motor Vehicle Morgan, Bernice - Property	13.00 6.00 48.00 3.50 3.57	
Lawton, Ronald - Property Langille, James - Residence Taylor, Ronald - Property Pattee, Frank V Motor Vehicle	4.64 10.00 4.70 7.00	
Bowlan Lumber - Property Leonard, Thomas J. Property Durgin, Michael - Filing Fees Lambert, Michael - Filing Fees Crutchfield, Walt - Motor Vehicle Brunnhoelzl, Frederick Jr Motor Vehicle	3.87 3.48 2.00 2.00 5.00 5.00	
Sharp, Randolph G. Jr Motor Vehicle Fleming, Kimberly Grady, Joseph I. Rich, Ida D Property	27.00 10.00 3.00 32.75	
Grenier, Peter - Motor Vehicle Cersosimo Lumber - Property	8.00 51.80	
TOTAL EXPENSES INTEREST		562.54
	,500.00 ,128.74	
TOTAL EXPENSES		61,628.74
LOANS - TEMPORARY		
Bank of New Hampshire, Sewer 70,	,00.000 ,000.00 ,000.00	

TOTAL EXPENSES

477,000.00

STATE AND COUNTY		
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire Treasurer, Merrimack County	1,739.13 82,399.00	
TOTAL EXPENSES		84,138.13
STREET LIGHTING		
Public Service Company of N.H.		8,052.09
SIDEWALK PLOWING		
Richard E. Senecal	500.00	
Kenneth W. Ward	173.25	
Robert W. Gould	28.20	
Keats, Inc.	61.59	
Gasoline	8.32	
TOTAL EXPENSES		771.44
TOWN HALL RENOVATIONS		
Merrimack Farmers Exchange	180.69	
Robert W. Morse, Jr.	141.17	
TOTAL EXPENSES		221.07
TOTAL EXPENSES		321.86
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES		
Property Map	2,730.77	
Fire-Police Building	100.00	
Dog Officer	179.00	
Conservation Commission Keyes Associates	60.00 3,110.04	
Catamount Construction	40,178.27	
Community Action Program	1,163.28	
Trustees Trust Funds	4,000.00	
R. C. Hazelton Company	63,448.00	
Janet M. Murdough, Surety Bonds	810.00	
Mid-State Office Equipment	400.00	
Farmers Home Administration	35,000.00	
Tucker Free Library	2,750.00	
Memorial Day	600.00	
Hydrant Rental	1,000.00	
N. H. Municipal Association	409.08	
Central N. H. Regional Planning Genest Ford	1,359.00	
Henniker School District	21,467.00 550,960.98	
Janet M. Murdough, Tax Collector	42,670.39	
Hall, Morse, Gallagher and Anderson	2,287.16	
Town Poor	120.00	
Old Age Assistance	2,603.19	
Town of Warner	25.60	
TOTAL EXPENSES		777,431.76
TOTAL ALL EXPENSES	\$	1,715,189.93

# WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Damour, Charles E.	14,020.24
Ward, Kenneth W.	7,959.88
Pennock, Richard	336.52
Retirement	702.05
Social Security	1,368.65
Blue Cross/Blue Shield	1,398.56
Continental Telephone of New Hampshire	667.60
Public Service Company of N. H.	13,007.40
Central Paper Products	146.14
Davis & Towle Agency	3,282.12
Edmunds	132.36
Ayer & Goss	2,384.93
Sanel	54.80
Charles E. Damour, Expenses Kenneth W. Ward, Expenses	35.31
	3.40
Town of Henniker	562.70
Axton-Cross	1,072.00
Bank of New Hamsphire, Interest	2,915.16
Capitol Plumbing and Heating	46.57
Keats	28.55
Evans Radio	56.81
Fischer & Porter Company	396.13
Jones Chemicals	1,501.71
E. J. Prescott	193.65
Henniker Automotive	53.45
Oxford Chemicals	39.75
VWR Scientific	837.94
Western Avenue Garage	13.25
Plodzik & Sanderson	400.00
Tapco Pump Co.	61.03
St. Johnsbury Trucking	10.40
Millipore Corporation	139.16
Aetna Pumps, Inc.	32.77
Merrimack Farmers' Exchange	31.13
Advanced Bearing & Supply	56.69
Mr. Gee's Tire	79.50
Penn-Hampshire Lubricants	2.68
Brown & Saltmarsh	16.59
New Hampshire Supply	23.96
Henniker Crushed Stone	94.57
Nash's Auto Outlet	1.20
Henniker Construction	1,091.86
Trustees of Trust Funds	4,000.00
Process Distributors Inc.	65.07
Cogswell Spring Water Works 3M Business Products	240.00 68.34
Janet M. Murdough, Tax Collector	5,651.23
Chemcon, Inc.	41.82

Hellige, Inc.	33.03
Valley Transportation	18.00
MWM Company	41.06
F. S. Willey, Co.	19.35
Goulet Supply	12.84
United Glass Service Center	35.00
Larry Damour	225.00
Wayne Roswell	50.00
Wyman's Chevrolet	159.48
Henniker Machine	7.80
Hall, Morse, Gallagher & Anderson	1,000.00
Century Auto Supply	9.83
George Russell, Refund	367.50
Jeffrey Towle, Refund	40.00
Mable Homo, Refund	15.00
Bernard Walker, Jr.	12.50

#### TOTAL EXPENSES

\$ 67,372.02

#### **AUDITOR'S OPINION**

#### LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Board of Selectmen Town of Henniker Henniker, New Hampshire 03242 Gentlemen:

We have examined the financial statements of the Town of Henniker Enterprise (Sewer Department) and Capital Projects Funds at December 31, 1978, listed in the foregoing table of contents. Our examination was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The records of the Sewer Department do not include fixed assets and related depreciation accounts. Accordingly, fixed assets are not included in the balance sheet, nor is depreciation related to the fixed assets included in the results of operations. Because of the possible material effect of the omission of fixed assets and related depreciation on the financial position, results of operations, and changes in financial position, we do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the Enterprise (Sewer Department) Fund.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Capital Projects Fund, present fairly the financial position of the Fund at December 31, 1978 and the results of operations for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The supplemental schedules included in this report, although not considered necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations, are presented primarily for supplemental analysis purposes. This additional information has been subjected to the audit procedures applied in the aforementioned examination of the basic financial statements and is, in our opinion, fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

January 16, 1979

Killian, Plodzik & Sanderson

#### Exhibit A-1

# BALANCE SHEET - DECEMBER 31, 1978

Assets	
Cash - In checking \$45,938 In Savings 27,151	
Total Accounts Receivable - Sewer Connection Fees 4,900 Sewer Rents 17,276 Due From Capital Projects Fund 2,182	\$ 73,089
Total Capital Reserve Fund	24,358 4,095
TOTAL ASSETS	\$101,542
Liabilities, Reserves and Retained Earnings Liabilities - Due Town of Henniker - General Fund Reserves - Capital Reserve Fund Retained Earnings	\$ 7,915 4,095 89,532
TOTAL LIABILITIES, RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS	\$101,542

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

#### Exhibit A-2

# STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE AND RETAINED EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1978

Revenues - Sewer Rents	\$ 99,055
Other	5,268
Total Operating Revenues	\$104,323
Operating Expenses - Treatment Plant	
Salaries	\$22,236

Power Purchased	12,270	
Fuel	2,362	
Chemicals	3,020	
General Maintenance and Supplies	1,245	
West Henniker Pumping Station	\$41,133	
Power Purchased	738	
Administrative Services and Supplies		
Employee Benefits	2,932	
Insurance	3,815	
Truck Expense	1,175	
Telephone	667	
Legal and Accounting	1,400	
Office Counting	·	
Office Supplies and Expenses	404	
Water	240	
	10,633	
Total Operating Expenses		52,504
Net Operating Income Before Capital Expendence Capital Expenditures - New Equipment New Laterals Transfer To Capital Reserve Fund Total Capital Expenditures	\$ 701 1,092 4,000	\$51,819
Net Operating Income		\$ 46,026
Specific Spe		н . э, э . э
Other Income and Expense Interest Expense Interest on Investments	\$ 2,915 1,238	
Net Other Income and - Expense		- 1,677
Net Income		\$ 44,349
Retained Earnings - December 31, 1977		45,183
Retained Earnings - December 31, 1978  The accompanying notes are an integration financial statements.	egral part of	\$ 89,532 these

# Exhibit A-3 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1978

Working Capital Provided By	
Net Income	\$44,349
T	#14.210
Increase in working capital	\$44,349

Working Capital - December 31, 1977	45,183
Working Capital - December 31, 1978 Changes in Working Capital	\$89,532
Increase in Current Assets - Cash Accounts Receivable	\$31,942 3,756
Decrease in Current Liabilities - Due General Fund	\$35,698 8,651
Increase in Working Capital	\$44,349
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.	these
Exhibit B-1	
BALANCE SHEET	
DECEMBER 31, 1978	
ASSETS	
Cash in Bank	\$ 6,351
Accounts Receivable - Federal Grant	66,697
Bonds or Notes Authorized - Unissued	145,000
TOTAL ASSETS	\$218,048
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE	
Liabilities - Federal Aid Anticipation Note Payable (Note Due Town of Henniker - General Fund (Note 4) Due Town of Henniker - Sewer Fund	3) \$ 42,900 77,418 2,182
Total Liabilities Fund Balance	\$122,500 95,548
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANC	E \$218,048
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.	these
Exhibit B-2	
SEWER PROJECT FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19	
Fund Balance - December 31, 1977	\$100,251

296

\$100,547 3,110

Add - Interest Earned

Total Fund Balance and Additions Deduct - Expenditures

Estimated Decrease i	n F	'ederal	Aid
----------------------	-----	---------	-----

1,889

Total Deductions

4,999

Fund Balance - December 31, 1978

\$ 95,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Henniker conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units except that the Town does not maintain a record of fixed assets.

The books and records of the Town are maintained using budgetary and single-entry cash basis accounting. The balance sheets have been prepared under the modified accrual method of accounting as applied to governmental entities.

Note 2 - Sewer Department - Long Term Debt

The long-term debt of the Sewer Department is paid from the general revenues of the Town. Likewise, the State's share of long-term debt is included in the general fund budget.

Total Sewer Debt Paid in 1978

Principal Interest	\$42,000 51,1 <b>7</b> 3	
State Share	\$93,173 43,061	
Dained has I and Tomain		

Raised by Local Taxation \$50,112 Note 3 - Federal Aid Anticipation Note Payable - \$42,900

This is a commercial note held by the Bank of New Hampshire National Association dated December 14, 1978 at 5.75%, due February 12, 1979.

Note 4 - Due Town of Henniker - General Fund - \$77,418

This amount represents payments made by the general fund on behalf of the capital projects fund in the following years:

1974	\$21,487
1975	10,269
1977	2,374
1978	43,288
	\$77,418

Schedule 1

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1978

		1978	- Over Under
General Sewer and Administrative	Appro.	Exp.	Budget
Payroll Taxes and Benefits	\$ 3,800	\$ 2,932	\$ 868

Ingurance	1.550	2 015	-2,265
Insurance Truck Expanse	1,550	3,815	-2,205
Truck Expense	600	1,175 667	-575 -67
Telephone	500		-900
Legal and Accounting		1,400	
Office Supplies and Expenses	400	404	-4
Water	150	240	-90
Other General Expenses	500		500
Total	8,300	10,633	-2,333
West Henniker Pumping Station Power Purchased	900	738	162
Treatment Plant (Incl. Ramsdell Road		730	102
		12.010	100
Plant Operator's Salary	13,760	13,940	-180
Helper's	6,000	8,296	-2,296
Power Purchased	12,000	12,270	-270
Fuel	2,600	2,362	238
New Equipment	1,000	701	299
Chemicals	800	3,020	-2,220
General Maintenance and Supplies	750	1,245	-495
Total	36,910	41,834	-4,924
Other Capital Expenditures			
Cover Costs	10,000		10,000
Paving	1,000		1,000
New Laterals	700	1,092	-392
Capital Reserve Fund	4,000	4,000	
Total	15,700	5,092	10,608
Interest on Federal Aid Ant. Note	20,,00	2,915	-2,915
Totals	\$61.010	¢61 212	\$ 598
1 Otals	\$61,810	\$61,212	\$ 390
Schedule 2 TAX COLLECTOR - SUMMARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED D			
- DR			
Uncollected Sewer Rents - December	31, 1977		\$11,920
Committments During Year - April 1, 1	978	\$54,000	
October 10, 1978		45,588	
			99,588
Interest Collected on Delinquent Paym	ents		1,161
Overpayments Refunded			111
Total Debits			\$112,780
- CR			
Remittances To Treasurer - Sewer Ren	its		\$ 94,134
Interest Collected			1,161
Abatements Allowed			209
Uncollected Sewer Rents - December	31, 1978		17,276
2 de la companya de l	,,		-,,-,-
Total Credits			\$112,780

#### LONG-TERM IDEBTEDNESS

# As of December 31, 1978

Amount of Original Issue \$985,000
Date of Original Issue December, 1976
Principal Payable Date December 1st
Interest Payable Dates Payable At Farmers Home Administration

Maturities - Fiscal Year Ending:	Principal	Interest
December 31, 1979	35,000	45,750
December 31, 1980	35,000	44,000
December 31, 1981	35,000	42,250
December 31, 1982	35,000	40,500
December 31, 1983	35,000	38,750
December 31, 1984	35,000	37,000
December 31, 1985	35,000	35,250
December 31, 1986	35,000	33,500
December 31, 1987	35,000	31,750
December 31, 1988	35,000	30,000
December 31, 1989	35,000	28,250
December 31, 1990	35,000	26,500
December 31, 1991	35,000	24,750
December 31, 1992	35,000	23,000
December 31, 1993	35,000	21,250
December 31, 1994	35,000	19,500
December 31, 1995	35,000	17,750
December 31, 1996	35,000	16,000
December 31, 1997	35,000	14,250
December 31, 1998	35,000	12,500
December 31, 1999	35,000	10,750
December 31, 2000	35,000	9,000
December 31, 2001	35,000	7,250
December 31, 2002	35,000	5,500
December 31, 2003	35,000	3,750
December 31, 2004	40,000	2,000
Totals	\$915,000	\$620,750

# Statement of Debt Service Requirements

Sewer Notes 5.75% \$70,000 December 31, 1976 December 31st June 30 & Dec. 31 Bank of N. H.

		Total	
Principal	Interest	Principal	Interest
7,000	3,265	42,000	49,015
7,000	2,857	42,000	46,857
7,000	2,449	42,000	44,699
7,000	2,041	42,000	42,541
7,000	1,632	42,000	40,382
7,000	1,244	42,000	38,244
7,000	816	42,000	36,066
7,000	408	42,000	33,908
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	31,750
		3 <b>5,0</b> 00	30,000
		35 <b>,</b> 000	28,250
		35,000	26,500
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	24,750
		3 <b>5,0</b> 00	23,000
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	21,250
		35,000	19,500
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	17,750
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	16,000
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	14,250
		3 <b>5,0</b> 00	12,500
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	10,750
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	9,000
		35,000	7,250
		3 <b>5,</b> 000	<b>5,5</b> 00
		35,000	3 <b>,75</b> 0
		40,000	2,000
\$56,000	\$14,712	\$971,000	\$635,462

2
643.76
Closed out
Bank of N.H. Cd. No. 1744

			19,390.10	
5,999.65	1,764.97	27.36	5,095.00	
551.66 42.00 5,999.65	242.07 465.51 333.00 399.39 325.00 1,764.97	27.36	1,019.95 135.69 185.15 198.66 399.70 454.18 150.24 114.25 271.53	206.13 146.38 46.97 32.64 105.42
			21,555.75	
15,000.00 1,050.00 57,128.61	3,064.73 5,998.50 3,515.00 3,517.34 4,095.35 20,190.92	500.00	2,503.00 995.06 569.29 2,515.1.2 2,505.80 4,026.25 1,994.85 3,000.00 2,497.00 20,606.37	2,512.35 994.95 515.36 488.25 998.80
Bank of N.H. Cert. No. 1090 42 Shares 1st Financial Group	James & Merrimack Cty. Cert. 75-602323 Hannah 1108.382 Shares Fidelity Fund Straw 111 Shares Chem. Corn Exchange Bank 726.184 Shares Broad St. Invest. Indiana Public Service Co.	George H. Cheshire Cty. Savings Bank 39703 Dodge	1925 John Proctor N. H. Savings and Proctor Amoskeag Savings Concord Savings Cert. 5015 892.160 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 982.697 Shares Eaton & Howard 357.748 Fidelity Fund 139.807 Shares Investors Trust 416.535 Shares Puritan Fund	L.A. Cogswell Amoskeag Sav. Cert. 160-11150 Athletic 326.747 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust Field 101.659 Shares Eaton & Howard 77.725 Shares Fidelity Fund 161.741 Shares Puritan Fund
	1922	1927	1925	1929

4,353.14			24,372.16
	564.41	1,106.61	57.12
3,767.78 47.82 4,353.14	233.20 146.38 46.97 32.64 105.42 564.61	209.40 150.11 312.50 218.68 215.92 1,106.61	114.24 11,044.45 115.84 115.84 124.67 437.09 976.31 676.34 312.23 240.66 547.37
			19,498.71
5,509.71	3,033.70 994.95 515.36 +88.25 998.80 6,031.06	2,551.86 1,836.41 1,989.90 1,997.02 1,997.60	2,167.59 2,167.59 1,480.02 1,518.65 5,347.24 6,006.55 5,991.06 3,499.08 1,927.50 4,994.00
Park Dept. Return Income N.H. Savings 219781	1929 L.A. Cogswell Franklin Savings Cert. 74-100204 Azalea Park 326.747 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 101.659 Shares Eaton & Howard 77.725 Shares Fidelity Fund 161.741 Shares Puritan Fund	1929 L.A. Cogswell Amoskeag Cert. 16011151 Library N.H. Savings Cert. 75000868 697.534 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 473.151 Shares Eaton & Howard 331.234 Shares Puritan Fund	1935 Frank J. Cheshire Co. Savings  Constantine  1931 L.A. Cogswell N.H. Savings Cert. 97207  High Manchester Savings Cert. 600-5696  School Amoskeag Cert. 160.111-49  N.H. Savings Cert. 75-000-869  2179.257 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 1463.379 Shares Eaton & Howard 564.650 Shares Sigma Trust 126 Shares 1st Nat. Bank of Boston 839.717 Shares Puritan Fund

24,372.16	5,668.61 (60%)	9,447.69	15.00	79.10	
183.90 214.59 4,873.45	431.67 2,410.20 6/72.11 759.87 1,057.59 223.11 385.25 571.52 389.40 1,750.00 367.79	9,447.69	15.00	79.10	370.07 312.50 332.37 189.60
19,498.71					
Closed out 5,000.00 35,764.10	5,464.27 11,856.00 5,242.50 5,748.00 13,545.45 2,489.73 8,747.50 13,201.00 3,937.50 21,000.00 Closed out	101,231.95	300.00	1,000.00	4,527.22 1,989.90 2,995.53 2,497.05
Bank of N.H. Cd. 1741 Bank of N.H. Cert. 1087	James R. Merrimack Cty. Cert. 75602322 Straw 5379.951 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 2038.601 Shares Vance Sanders 1644.107 Shares Eaton & Howard 2518.083 Shares Fidelity Fund 403.487 Shares Sigma Trust 115 Shares Public Service at 3.35 127 Shares Public Service at 4.50 177 Shares Chase Manhattan Bank Ohio Bell Bank of N.H. Cd. No. 1743 Bank of N.H. Cert. 1089		Alice V. Colby Bank of N.H. No. 12904 Lib. Fund	1943 A.D. Huntoon Merchants Cert. 1-304747 Memorial Library	1903 Cemetery N.H. Savings Cert. 75-000-867 Funds 697.534 Shares Mass. Inv. Trust 719.138 Shares Eaton & Howard 451.445 Shares Fidelity Fund

	1,249.67		2,352.44			26,667.58	122.75		
2,196.80		304.11		27.41	55.70			180.98	
514.08 220.68 257.50 2,196.80	64.73	5.41 298.70 304.11	121.91	27.41	55.70 55.70	1,262.81 1,262.81	6.39	180.98 180.98	107.87
						21,404.77	116.39		
4,087.50 Closed out 6,000.00 22,097.20	1,184.94	2,733.72 2,833.04	2,230.53 2,230.53	500.00 500.00	1,017.46	4,000.00		2,290.69	1,357.23
504 Shares Bank of America Bank of N.H. Cd. 1740 Bank of N.H. Cert. 1086	1957 Annie M. Merrimack Co. Savings Blaisdell	952 Max Israel Merrimack Cty. Savings Scholarship 906.046 Shares Vance Sanders	1951 H.B. Preston Merrimack Co. Savings Forestry	1968 George W. N. H. Savings Noyes	1969 Henniker N. H. Savings Womens Club	1969 Heavy Equip. N.H. Savings (Town Appropriation) Accumulation	1972 Police Cruis. N. H. Savings	1976 Ida M. Badger N.H. Savings	1977 N.C. Parmen- N.H. Savings ter - Scholar. N.H. Savings 218202

		4,094.99	6,758.59
150.00	615.77		15,000.00
42.13 150.00	350.34 265.43 615.77	94.99	431.04 3,779.08 4,210.12
			17,548.47 40% 17,548.47
1,482.23	6,972.69 260.00 7,232.69	4,000.00	
		75	
Donation	N.H. Savings Valley Bank	N.H. Savings 218702	Merchants
	1977 Beth A. Borden Scholarship	1978 Capital Res. Sewer	James R. Straw 40% Income

# INVESTED FUNDS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1978

JAMES R. STRAW 60% FUND Balance - January 1, 1978 \$ 7 Receipts during year - Interest	7,213.91 368.05
Balance - December 31, 1978 (Valley Bank - Account No. 57671)	\$ 7,581.96
FRANK J. CONSTANTINE FUND (Welfs	are)
Balance - January 1, 1978 \$ Receipts during year - Interest	143.78 7.34
Balance - December 31, 1978 (Valley Bank - Account No. 57668)	\$ 151.12
REVENUE SHARING	
Receipts during year - Income 3	,406.23 ,464.04 ,365.00
	7,235.27 0,000.00
Balance on hand Dec. 31, 1978 (Valley Bank - Account No. 27203)	\$ <b>55,235.2</b> 7

# TRUSTEES OF TOWN TRUST FUNDS

# DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME

Mary Kjellman, Treasurer Library	
G. W. Tucker	\$ 5,668.00
Edna Dean Proctor	5,000.00
D. W. & E. L. Cogswell	599.97
Harry B. Preston	376.36
L. A. Cogswell	1,106.61
A. D. Huntoon	79.10
Alice V. Colby	15.00
E. Benjamin Ayer, Town Treasurer	\$ 12,845.04
James R. Straw	\$ 5,668.61
Straw 40% Fund	15,000.00
Ida Badger	180.98
F. J. Constantine	57.12
Edna Dean Proctor	95.00

George W. Noyes	27.41
	\$ 21,029.12
Robert Sterling, Treasurer Cemeteries	,
D. W. & E. L. Cogswell	\$ 599.96
James & Hannah Straw	1,764.97
Cemetery Funds	2,196.80
	\$ 4,561.73
J. Philip Chase, School Treasurer	
D. W. & E. L. Cogswell	\$ 4,199.76
George H. Dodge	27.36
	\$ 4,227.12
Ralph Parkhurst, Treasurer Parks	
D. W. & E. L. Cogswell	\$ 599.96
Azalea Park Fund	564.61
	\$ 1,164.57
Robert J. Scully, High School Headmaster	
Max Israel Scholarship	\$ 304.11
Beth Borden Scholarship	615.77
Norman Parmenter Scholarship	150.00
	\$ 1,069.88
Edward Hatlack, Treasurer Dollars for Scholars	
Woman's Club Fund	\$ 55.70
New Hamsphire Savings Bank	
Edna Dean Proctor (84198)	\$ 1,588.56
Athletic Field Fund	4,305.32
L. A. Cogswell High School Fund (97207)	3,829.00
Heavy Equipment Fund (175193)	4,189.35
	\$ 13,912.23
Merchants Savings Bank	
Straw 40% Fund (81229)	\$ 3,779.08
Cheshire Couty Savings Bank	
½ F. J. Constantine Fund (26473)	\$ 57.12

Trustees Town Trust Funds
J. Philip Chase
Clarence L. Fitch
Myron J. Hazen

# COGSWELL SPRING WATER WORKS

# FINANCIAL REPORT OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 1978

Receipts:	
Cash on Hand January 1, 1978	\$ 17,744.83
Water Rents Collected	22,589.83
Hvdrant Rental, Town of Henniker	1,000.00
Extensions	669.52
Insurance Co., Damage to Hydrant	941.35
Error in Check 1977	.50
TOTAL RECEIPTS	\$ 42,945.64
Expenditures:	
State Treasurer, Social Security	976.14
Public Service Company	6,970.66
E. J. Prescott Inc., supplies	872.56
Ti Sales Inc., Supplies	929.43
Steven Connor, labor and equipment	972.00
N.H. Water Supply & Pollution Control, tests	290.00
North End Welding Co., thawing pipes	144.00
Hilco Supply, supplies	274.29
Messenger, water user notice	9.00
Davis & Towle Insurance	51.00
Contoocook Valley Advertiser	80.00
R. E. Senecal Inc., use equip. and labor	92.00
Western Ave. Garage, battery	56.45
Donat A. Damour, Com. salary, labor, use	equip. 931.04
Charles E. Damour, Com. salary, labor, use	equip. 1,865.85
Clarence W. Edmunds, Com. and Collectors	
Hattie M. Edmunds, Treas. and postage	285.45
New England College, printing	40.00
H. R. Prescott Inc., hydrant flags	281.25
Edmunds Dept. Store Inc., postage and suppl	ies 775.20
Duplicate Deposit Books	2.55
TOTAL Payments by Order	\$ 16,463.77
Transferred to Valley Bank Savings Account	
Cash on Hand Valley Bank Checking Account	1 02-629-8 6,481.87
TOTAL	\$ 42,945.64
C	clarence W. Edmunds
Coll	ector & Commissioner
	9,269.67

# REPORT OF TREASURER FOR 1978

2,024.68

Extensions Due 12-31-78

Cash on Hand January 1, 1978	\$ 17,744.83
Received from C. W. Edmunds, water rents	22,589.34

Received from C. W. Edmunds, hydrant rental Received from C. W. Edmunds, Ins. Co.,	1,000.00
damaged hydrant	941.35
Received from C. W. Edmunds, ext tap in fees	669.62
Error in 1977 check	.50
	\$ 42,945.64
On Deposit N.H. Savings Bank a-c 201330	\$ 43,963.65
Interest	2,393.38
	\$ 46,357.03
On Deposit Valley Bank a-c 52003	\$ 10,667.94
Transferred to savings from checking a-c	20,000.00
Interest	1,415.76
	\$ 32,083.70
Total Orders drawn from Water Commissioners	16,463.77
Transferred to Savings account Valley Bank	20,000.00
Balance in Checking Account, Valley Bank 02-629-8	6,481.87
	\$ 42,945.64
Hattie M	. Edmunds
	Treasurer

# DISTRICT COURT OF HENNIKER

# FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1978

CASH RECEIPTS:		
Cash on hand January 1, 1978	\$ 494.40	
Total receipts from fines & forfeitures		
received during year in criminal cases	46,603.75	
Total receipts from entry fees, writs,		
executions, and other income in civil case	s 530.00	
Other receipts	3,287.53	
• •	68.23	
TOTAL cash received for the year		\$ 50,983.91
CASH DISBURSEMENTS:		
Total amount paid to State	\$ 17,214.00	
Total amount paid to municipality	18,000.00	
Total amount paid for court operating		
expenses	2,497.45	
Total amount paid for witness fees		
and travel	790.80	
Other disbursements	9,264.28	

Bank charges and bad checks outstanding	275.49	
TOTAL disbursements for the year		\$ 48,042.02
Balance - Cash on hand December 31, 1978		\$ 2,941.89
CASE COUNT:		
Total number of criminal cases entered	1655	
Total number of juvenile petitions entered	15	
Total number of civil cases entered	136	
TOTAL all cases entered		1806
	Jeanett	e Pennock

Clerk

#### HENNIKER YOUTH SERVICES

Heuniker Youth Services has had a good, active year thanks to the generosity of the Henniker towns people.

There has been a Y.M.C.A. swim trip twice a month, one for elementary students and one for junior high and high school students.

We took movie trips to see "The Goodbye Girl", "Oh God", "The Shaggy Dog", and "Who's Murdering the Great Chefs of Europe." Movies such as "Bambi", "Snow White", and other Disney favorites have been shown in the high school gym.

Last year we promoted trips to the Springfield College gym team exhibition and the Connecticut Ballet held at New England College and to the University of New Hampshire for a theater festival for elementary students.

The "Kitchen Sink" mime Company came to the Henniker schools at our sponsorship. It was enjoyed so much that plans are

being made to have them return for an all-day clinic.

In the sports department we have a girls elementary school basketball and softball team. The cheerleaders for the Community Center boys basketball teams (elementary and junior high) are sponsored by our funds.

Our yearly holiday activities included the Halloween party in October, Christmas tree lighting/carol sing the first Sunday in December, and the annual Easter egg hunt held the Saturday before

Easter.

Our summer activities included two trips to Canobie Lake Park and two trips to the ocean at York Beach, Maine. Two sessions of six lessons were held for tennis players. The games nights held at the Congregational Parish Hall proved to be unsuccessful in comparison to other years and for the most part were discontinued.

Classes in pottery and chorus were held in the junior high and high school in the spring. In April we took a theater trip to Boston to see "Pippin" with a side trip to the Quincy City Market and other historic places.

Teenage dances have been held in the Congregational Parish

House with much success.

The success of the movies that are held in the gym and the dances in the Parish House is due to the efforts of a group of young people who have been very supportive of Henniker Youth Services and to whom we owe a big "thank you" for all their help, especially Gary Snair who is the organizer of the helpers for these two events and the annual fall party.

Many people have helped make our year successful and we're most appreciative. We especially thank Fred Brunnhoelzl for the twice monthly bus service to the Y.M.C.A., the high school board for the use of their facilities and the Congregational Church for the use of the Parish House. Without community volunteers Henniker

Youth Services would not be able to continue.

Help is still needed for our activities and if you'd like to help, please contact me.

Carol B. Hamilton
Director

#### BICENTENNIAL COMMITTEE

# FOR CALENDAR YEAR 1978

Valley Bank Savings Acct. Valley Bank Checking Acct.  Total Funds Income: Refund, Edmunds Hardware on lighting Interest on savings account  TOTAL ASSETS  Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society  \$ 288.05  15.37  7.87  \$ 311.29	Balance of Funds January 1, 1978			
Valley Bank Checking Acct.  Total Funds Income: Refund, Edmunds Hardware on lighting Interest on savings account  TOTAL ASSETS  Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society  5.95  \$ 288.05  15.37  7.87  \$ 311.29		\$ 282.10		
Income: Refund, Edmunds Hardware on lighting Interest on savings account  TOTAL ASSETS  Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society		"		
Income: Refund, Edmunds Hardware on lighting Interest on savings account  TOTAL ASSETS  Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society	Total Funds		\$	288.05
Interest on savings account  TOTAL ASSETS  Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society  7.87  \$ 311.29			য়	
Disbursements: Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board Lock for Bulletin Board Contribution to Henniker Historical Society		·····g		
Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board  Lock for Bulletin Board  Contribution to Henniker Historical Society	TOTAL ASSETS		\$	311.29
Lock for Bulletin Board 3.50 Contribution to Henniker Historical Society	Disbursements:			
Lock for Bulletin Board 3.50 Contribution to Henniker Historical Society	Labor and Materials for Bulletin Board	266.00		
•	Lock for Bulletin Board	3.50		
1 PPS VIII	Contribution to Henniker Historical Society			
to up-date Town History 41.79	to up-date Town History	41.79		
1				
TOTAL LIABILITIES/DISBURSEMENTS \$ 311.29	TOTAL LIABILITIES/DISBURSEMEN	TS	\$	311.29
Current Assets - 0 -	·			- 0 -

Seymour Koretz Treasurer

# HENNIKER RESCUE SQUAD

# TREASURER'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 12/31/78 SOURCE OF FUNDS

Moneys in Banks, January 1, 1978 Income Received: Personal Donations Fund Raising Receipts Interest and Misc. Income	\$ 2,641.13 7,668.13 297.16	\$ 7,004.77
		10,606.42
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE		\$17,611.19
APPLICATION OF FUNDS		
Medical Supplies	297.05	
Equipment Purchase and Repair	2,040.18	
Ambulance Gas and Oil	227.89	
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance	652.43	
Communication and Dispatch	989.44	
Training and Licensing	542.30	
Administration and Uniforms	567.06	
Fund Raising Expense	2,871.19	
Building Construction	686.70	
Building Maintenance	1,578.48	
		\$10,452.72
TOTAL MONEY IN BANKS Dec. 3	1, 1978	\$ 7,158.47
Balance of Accounts		
Checking	396.50	
Regular Savings	1,213.47	
90 Day Savings	5,548.50	
TOTAL	\$ 7,158.47	

# RESCUE SQUAD REPORT

The Henniker Rescue Squad continued to grow and develop during the course of the year with members taking advanced life support courses to make us one of the few squads in the area to provide advanced techniques. Calls for the year were up some 12% totalling 171. Costs for the operation of the service has increased although contributions and memorials have been on the decline. Accordingly, the squad is planning to go for town appropriations to continue our emergency medical service in the same highly professional manner.

Several courses were offered to members of the community during the year and plans are to continue this effort. Every person in the community who has training in first aid can assist the squad by beginning immediate care until the squad arrives on the scene.

Thank you for your continued support.

David P. Currier Chief

# ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

By statute the Board of Adjustment has powers to hear and decide appeals from administrative orders, hear and decide special exceptions to the Zoning Ordinance, to authorize upon appeal variance from the Zoning Ordinance where certain special conditions exist.

During 1978 the Board heard requests for variances to the Zoning Ordinance. In both instances the variances were granted.

Respectfully submitted,

Douglas B. Allen
Chairman

# PLANNING BOARD

#### REPORT FOR THE YEAR 1978

Another year has come to a close, a very busy one. The Board continues to meet on the second and fourth Wednesday of each month with the exception of July and August. We met many other Wednesdays due to the formation of a Master Plan Committee and the number and size of the subdivisions.

The following Subdivisions were approved in 1978:

- 1. Richard Clark, West Hopkinton Road
- 2. Clarence McIver, Bacon
- 3. Fred Nobel, Craney Hill Road
- 4. Colin Nicol, Gulf Road
- 5. Merle Patenaude, Bacon Road
- 6. Ronald Taylor, Davison Road
- 7. Wesley Grant, Flanders Road
- 8. Stephen Pulkowski, Craney Hill Road 9. Richard Hennmuth, Dodge Hill Road
- 10. Charles Hogg, Bear Hill Road
- 11. Contoocook Valley Industries, Route 114
- 12. Frank Goss, Liberty Hill Road
- 13. John Davison, Davison Road
- 14. Patenaude Properties, Tanglewood, Warner Road
- 15. John Costello, Foster Hill Road
- 16. Michael Friester, Fairview Avenue
- 17. Richard French, Concord Road

The following Property Line Adjustments were approved in 1978

- 1. Village Green, between the lots in the Green
- 2. Wesley Herrick, Juniper Ridge
- 3. Paul Dugan, Western Avenue
- 4. Edward Gay, Warner Road

5. Merle Patenaude, Old Hillsboro Road

The following Mobile Home Permits were recommended by the Planning Board

1. Richard Charette, Cote Hill Road (Travel Trailer)

2. Freda Bassett, Concord Road

We had two members, Fred Brunnhoelzl and Peter Gilbert, resign from the Board in May and were sorry to see them leave. Steven Connor and Joseph Grady were changed from alternates to full members, George Russell has been appointed as an alternate. At present the Board is missing two alternates to make a full Board.

The Master Plan committee was appointed in April. The appointees being Herve Aucoin, Joseph Clement Jr., Percy Davison, John Durr, Barbara French, Eve Goss, Robert Gregg, Milton Morris. Three members resigned in June, John Durr, Percy Davison, and Milton Morris. Alice Norton has been appointed to the Board.

The following report has been submitted by the Committee.

"Since the formation of the Master Plan Committee, which was appointed by the Planning Board in April, 1978, there have been twenty meetings as of Dec. 1978. The goals of the committee were formulated during the spring and after a public hearing which was attended by more than 50 residents of the town.

"The goals are 1.) Survey of the concerns and opinions of the residents of Henniker.

2.) Inventory the physical characteristics of the town and their suitability toward certain uses in relation to future needs.

3.) Implementation of a Land Use Plan.

"As of December 1, 1978 the Committee was in the process of tallying 405 questionnaires out of a total 906 that were circulated, which represents 42% return. The committee would like to thank all of the survey volunteers and residents of the town for their cooperation during the survey process and is hopeful of continued help and support.

Respectfully submitted
The Master Plan Committee"

Andy Holton is continuing to work on the town tax map. The Mylar of the entire town is completed and he is presently working on the center of town. This map is updated for every change that takes place. Our thanks to Andy.

The Board hopes to have the continued attendance by the

public as we work on the Master Plan.

Respectfully submited, Nina Morse Secretary

# AUDITORS' REPORT

We, the undersigned Auditors of the Town of Henniker, hereby certify that we have examined the books and accounts of the Selectmen, Town Clerk, Town Treasurer, Collector of Taxes, Agent for Memorial Day Appropriation, District Court, Treasurer of Tucker Free Library, Board of Trustees of Trust Funds including Securities as tabulated in the report, and deposits in Savings Banks and National Banks, Collector of Water Rents, Clerk and Treasurer of Water Commissioners, and find the same correctly cast and properly vouched.

John A. Savage Edward Hatlack J. Kenneth Cumniskey

#### CONCORD VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION

Visits made during the year beginning October 1, 1977 to September 30, 1978

Nursing 685 visits Home Health Aid 353 hours 241 visits 30 visits Physical Therapist 352 units Homemaker Nutritionist 2 visits Occupational Therapist 57 visits

The Concord Regional Visiting nurse Association, Inc. continued to service Henniker for the fifth year. They have provided skilled nursing care for anyone sick in the home, especially those needing continuity of care after discharge from the hospital. They are available to give hypodermic injections, change surgical dressings, and do other treatments prescribed by the attending physician. When indicated, family members have been instructed to give care between the nurse's visits.

Special services; such as, physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, and nutritional guidance have been given by the special staff and consultants in order to assist with the rehabilitation of an acute or chronic illness.

When family members are unable to supply all the needed care, a staff of homemaker-home health aides are available to give physical care, do light housekeeping, and assist with meal planning and meal preparation.

The nurses are delighted to advise new and expectant mothers in the care of themselves and their babies. They are also glad to work with families and individuals on normal nutrition, sickness,

and accident prevention.

Anyone in Henniker may request these services - doctor, family, pastor, friend or the patient himself. Patients are also referred by clinics and other agencies. All calls are answered, but continuing

care can be provided only under a doctor's orders.

A call to the Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc., (224-4093) between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. is all that is necessary to start services or make inquiries. Saturday, Sunday, and Holiday calls are only made when there is serious illness. Fees may be scaled to those unable to pay the entire amount.

Sincerely,

Lutie K. Piper, Executive Director

# CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

The Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission has existed since 1970 and during this period has continued its involvement in studies of both a regional as well as a local nature. As an advisory body, the Commission is often invited to participate in local planning projects. As a part of its technical assistance program the Commission has been pleased to be able to assist the Planning Board in the following areas: site plan review, state law interpretation, research into legal interpretations or court cases and the provision of data maps for planning purposes. The Commission again sponsored a series of legal seminars and was pleased to see the Town of Henniker represented. The Commission is currently preparing reports or model ordinances in the areas of wetland protection, building codes, farmland preservation and septic tank installation. The Commission trusts that these will benefit all concerned.

The Commission hopes to be able to continue to serve the needs of its member communities in future years and appreciates the past support of its activities by the Town of Henniker.

Respectfully submitted, Nina C. Morse

# WAGE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Wage Committee requested at Town Meeting 1978 was appointed by the Board of Selectmen and consisted of the following people:

William J. McIver, Chairman Charles E. Damour Richard A. French, Sr. Stephen C. Bennett Arthur S. Hadley, Jr.

This Committee met on January 2, 1979, to review and recommend to the Budget Committee salaries for the full-time personnel of the town, exclusive of the Police Department. It is recommended that these employees be granted a 7% (seven percent) wage increase for the year 1979. It is also recommended that all town employees salaries be reviewed by the Department Heads and Selectmen on a semi-annual basis.

Respectfully submitted,

William J. McIver

Chairman

#### CONSERVATION COMMISSION

In contrast to past years, 1978 has been an active year insofar as the filing of fill and dredge permit applications are concerned. The N.H. Wetland Protection Legislation requires that anyone proposing to excavate, remove, fill or dredge any bank, flat, marsh or swamp in and adjacent to any waters of the state must apply for a permit from the New Hampshire Water Resources Board. The local conservation commission is given an opportunity to comment to the Board on any permits that have been applied for. In 1978, the Conservation Commission received notice of six applications for permits, as follows:

David & Lovering Hayward, 3-24-77 French's Pond (log savage) Rodney Patenaude/Patenaude Properties, 6-28-78 Tanglewood Subdivision (fill and culvert installation for road construction) Retroactive

L. E. Wimmergren, 7-21-78 Liberty Hill (culvert installation) Rodney Patenaude, 7-26-78 Long Pond (dredge)

E. K. Conniff, 8-14-78 Long Pond (fill)

Rodney Patenaude/Patenaude Properties 10-20-78 Hillside Development (dredge and fill for road construction)

As a result of reviewing one of these applications in detail, the Conservation Commission recognized the need to have a detailed inventory of the wetlands in Henniker. Accordingly, the Commission has requested funds for the ensuing year to undertake such an inventory and publish it for use by the other Town committees and the public.

The Commission is exploring the possibility of undertaking a Dutch Elm Disease Control Program here in Henniker with the assistance of the Dutch Elm Institute in Harrisville, N. H.

With the advent of a master plan here in Henniker soon, the Conservation Commission is anxious to share the work it has done in this area in 1975 with the Environmental Quality Plan by Rick Saunders. Much work has been put into this project, and it is hoped that such information can be used by other groups interested in seeing that the Town of Henniker develops in an orderly fashion.

Spencer Bennett Edward Hatlack Thomas Heavey Virginia LaBar Robert Seaman

#### COMMUNITY ACTION ANNUAL REPORT

The Kearsarge Valley Community Action Program Center has been the focal point of social services delivery in this area. It has provided, through its staff and facilities, assistance to the community as a whole, as well as to low-income families. Programs such as the "Senior Congregate Meal Site", "Meals-on-Wheels", "Senior Transportation", "Adult and Child Health Clinics", and "Food Buying Club" have aided groups from all segments of the population. Programs such as "Emergency Energy Assistance" and "Weatherization" have been very successful in providing assistance to low-income families in our area.

Funds for the operation of the area center come from two sources. One is the Community Services Administration, the federal umbrella agency for all Community Action programs throughout the country. This year the Community Services Administration is contributing 61% of the total operating costs of our center.

Funding also comes from local appropriations from the towns we serve. The share of our total operating budget for which we ask the towns to contribute is based upon the percentage of local resident participation in Community Action programs or services. We feel that this is the most equitable procedure for dividing the costs between the towns.

The financial support is needed for the continued operation of the area center, rather than for specific programs, which receive their funding from various sources and granting agencies. However, the area center staff provides the essential outreach and local administration which makes these programs possible.

By having a Community Action Program center located in the Kearsarge Valley, we have been able to bring services which have heretofore been inaccessible to same residents of our area. Funding provides a base of operations for outreach services and a staff of social service workers, who inplement existing programs and plan new projects, specially suited to each particular town.

We have limited the increase in budget appropriations to five percent, which reflects some of the increases in operating costs due to inflation. But those hardest hit by economic pressures are the senior citizens and low-income families and individuals, thus increasing the need for Community Action Program assistance and services. We have attempted to meet the growing needs of the Community.

Much of our work would be impossible without your interest and support. It has been appreciated not only by us, but by the persons benefited by our services.

I have enclosed a copy of our budget which reflects the minimum costs to maintain our center, as well as compilation of participants in our programs. On behalf of the Kearsarge Valley Community Action Center, I am respectfully requesting that the following article be placed in the town warrant, and that a line item be put in the budget:

To see if the town of Henniker will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,221.44 for the continuation of services to the town through the Kearsarge Valley Area Center of the Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

I would also like to request a meeting with the Board of Selectmen and the Budget Committee to discuss our request, answer any questions you may have concerning it, or to make any necessary changes in the budget.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely, Judith Coleman Kearsarge Valley Community Action Program

# 1979 TOWN FUNDING BUDGET KEARSARGE VALLEY

Personnel: Area Director	\$ 8,900
Outreach Worker	6,875
Fringe at 14% of 14,974	2,524
- 1111go de 11/8 02 11/9//	
	\$18,299
Travel: Area Director 500 mi/mo x 12 x	
Outreach Worker 500 mi/mo x 12 x .1	
,,,,,,,,	
	1,440
Operating Costs: Rent - Warner \$140/mo	
Telephone 2 lines at \$100/mo	1,200
Utilities - Water - \$30/yr, Heat - \$30/	
x 12, Elec \$510/yr	900
Office Supplies - \$61/mo x 12	732
Printing - Dup \$57/mo x 12	684
Postage - Mailing - \$13/mo x 12	156
Insurance	19
	5,371
TOTAL	\$25,110
Town Funding 39%	\$ 9,733.50
CSA 61%	15,376.50
	\$25,110.00
Henniker	\$1,221.44
Warner	3,317.16
Sutton	880.99
Webster	635.92

Bradford	1,369.84	
Wilmot	680.72	
Newbury	440.98	
New London	1,186.45	
HENNIKER - 13.5% Resident P	,	
Service V	Value	Households
Congregate Meals (Seniors) - 262	meals 689.06	78
	3,5930.33	14
Food Buying Club	324.00 savings	3
Food Stamp Recertification	C	6
Green Thumb (seeds, fertilizer)	40.00	5
Housing Assistance (FmHA, other		
(60,000 rec'd in mortgages)	•	5
Information and Referral		15
Meals-On-Wheels (Seniors) - 600	meals 1,563.90	5
Rural Transportation (Seniors)	539.39	298 trips
Rural Home Repair 42.90 ma	terials, 171.60 labor	1
Weatherization (Plastic)		7
Weatherization (Insulation, etc.)	466.07 materials	
,,	1,864.28 labor	3

### HENNIKER PARK BOARD

Report for Year Ending Deceming Funds Available January 1, 1979 Leander A. Cogswell Azalea Park Fund D. W. & E. L. Cogswell General Park Fund Mabel Jones Memorial Fund	\$ 6,806.51	
Total On Deposit, Bank of New Hampshire	\$ 1,087.00	\$ 7,314.65
On Deposit, New Hampshire Savings Bank Total On Deposit	6,227.65	\$ 7,314.65
LEANDER A. COGSWELL ATHLETIC	FIELD FUN	ND ND
Available January 1, 1978 Interest	\$ 3,646.24 121.54	
		\$ 3,767.78

In accordance with the vote at the 1978 town meeting that the School Board should administer this fund, the above sum of \$3,767.78 was returned to the Trustees of Trust Funds.

## LEANDER A. COGSWELL AZALEA PARK FUND Receipts

January 1, 1978 balance available \$ 5,991.45

Income from Trust Interest		564.61 324.92	
Total Receipts Expenditures			\$ 6,880.98
Ĵohn L. Marston			<b>74.</b> 47
Balance			\$ 6,806.51
D. W. & E. L. Cogswell General Park Fund			
Receipts January 1, 1978 balance available 1978 Income from Trust Bank Interest R. Tinkham	\$	412.40 599.96 22.32 43.00	
Total Receipts			\$ 1,077.68
Expenditures: Community Park John L. Marston	\$	85.94	
Town of Henniker - Mowing	π	97.50	
			183.44
Expenditures: Woodman Park			103711
John L. Marston Town of Henniker - Mowing		148.08 162.50	
Public Service of N. H.		70.75	
			381.33
Expenditures: Ramsdell Triangle Town of Henniker - Mowing			65.00
SUMMARY D.W. & E.L. COGSWELL GE	NE)	RAL PA	RK FUND
Amount Available Expenditures			\$ 1,077.68
Community Park		183.44	
Woodman Park		381.33	
Ramsdell Triangle		65.00	
Total Expenditures			629.77
Balance			\$ 447.91
MABEL JONES MEMORIAL FUND			
Receipts			
Balance Available January 1, 1978 Bank Interest for 1978	\$	57.15 3.08	
			\$ 60.23

Ralph E. Parkburst Treasurer

### TRUSTEES OF THE TUCKER FREE LIBRARY

Each year the Library seems to be busier than the one bafore, and 1978 has been no exception. Those of you who use our facilities have noticed that there are more books and more patrons, and the new stereo system is a big improvement over the old one, and the evening hours become more and more popular. The Friends of the Library had an unusually interesting program this year, with a number of special events for youngsters during our weeks long 75th Birthday Celebration.

Our birthday was observed by many things, including a book autographing party with Sanborn Brown as guest of honor, a band concert, a letter-writing contest for elementary school students, and a birthday party complete with cake which included an Open House for the entire building and the best exhibit of the works of local

artists to date.

Focal point of the Open House was the Proctor Room now being built on the middle level of the Library and which is planned for a dual purpose. Part of the space will be used for much needed stack room, and the other will be used as a center for books and reading space for the Intermediate youngsters. (Anyone who observes the generous size of our Library building might think we have all the space we can possibly use, but during the last few years we have created the two Archives Rooms and the Childs Historical Room, and now the increasing number of young patrons demands that we develop a new area for some of them.

One of the activities of the Library about which not everyone may be aware is in the Archives Rooms, under the direction of

Mrs. Willa Brigham, whose report follows.

"Several faithful volunteers have been busy in the Archives Rooms organizing the wealth of material for the current work on HENNIKER HISTORY, 1880-1980. An accoustical ceiling was added to the larger room. All areas plus the Childs Room were open for Tucker Free Library's Birthday Celebration with 25 town artists exhibiting 54 items. Chief accessions in 1978 are a collection of carved wooden toys by Flanders given by Dr. Frederick Pratt in memory of Grace Condos. Henniker items included a second store counter, ear trumpet, kerosene lamp, prayer stool, and three of the town's first pieces of fire-fighting equipment, presented by Philip and Mary McLeod; a telephone and the Rim Factory whistle from Thomas and Barbara Carnes."

The Trustees would like to express their appreciation for the work mentioned above, and for the competent and dedicated service of our Librarians, Helene Dermon and Peggy Ward, plus the very efficient labors of June Woollett. We also appreciate all of the support we receive from the community, and hope to continue to make the Library more useful to the town in each ensuing year.

Respectfully submitted,

The Trustees
Tucker Free Library

### TUCKER FREE LIBRARY

Our Silver Jubilee year celebration was a busy and successful one, thanks to all who planned and attended the many events. The Grade School children wrote us birthday letters and the best one in each class received a book as a prize. The Friends of the Library sponsored a Clown show, the Ocean Born Mary puppet show and speakers Stacy Cole, Clarence Fitch and our local author, Sanborn Brown. The two biggest events were the concert by the 39th Army Band, N.H. Army National Guard in August and the birthday party in September.

The Friends, with Linda Patterson and Linda Connor were very active this year. Besides the programs they worked on, they also provided refreshments at these events, they supervised the Story Hour and the Reading program and had their annual Food. Book and Plant sale. They also presented the Library with two beautiful bookcases.

June Woollett was our typist this summer and we got all the old books from the Henniker Free Library re-cataloged. She is now working with us on a Work Study program from the school.

Remember, we do not charge fines for overdue books but you can make a contribution to our Conscience Box. Please use the Book Drop right at the front door to return books on days we're not opened.

Respectfully submitted.

Helene Dermon
Librarian
Peggy Ward
Assistant Librarian

### Books Purchased:

Adults	104
Youth	185
Gifts	89

### Circulation:

Borrowed from Bookmobile (3 visits)	1,675
Adult Fiction	3,402
Adult Non-Fiction	1,727
Youth Fiction	3,726
Youth Non-Fiction	1,275
Magazines	1,498
Records	147

### TREASURER'S REPORT

### FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1978

Receipts		
January 1, 1978 Balance	\$ 14,021.27	
Interest, Valley Bank	536.91	
Willis Cogswell Trust	4,800.00	
F. L. Childs Trust	395.29	
Proctor Fund	5,000.00	
Doon Fund	37.50	
Town Appropriation	2,750.00	
Donations	70.10	
Refunds	13.82	
Reimbursements	222.11	
Town Trust Funds	7,845.04	
momer n		
TOTAL Receipts		\$ 35,692.04
Expenditures		
Salaries - H. Dermon	\$ 2,827.24	
P. Ward	1,904.53	
J. Woollett	375.68	
M. Smiley	268.52	
Treas. State of N.H.	729.06	
Bank of N.H., NA, IRS	270.50	
TOTAL Salaries		\$ 6,375.53
Books		2,207.43
Periodicals		<b>555.</b> 33
Records		262.03
Supplies		281.60
Utilities - Ayer & Goss	1,487.84	
Continental Tel.	192.99	
Cogswell Spring W. W.	26.00	
Public Service of N.H.	957.48	
TOTAL Utilities		2,664.31
Other Operating Expenses		666.50
Miscellaneous Expenses		394.45
TOTAL Operating Expenditures		\$ 13,407.18
		ф 13, <del>7</del> 07.10
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES:		
Colonial Builders, Proctor Room	\$ 5,420.00	
Colonial Builders, Childs Room	315.00	
Gilbert, Dan, Shelving	71.00	
Holmes Trans., Proctor Room	89.52	
Holton, A., Plans, Proctor Room	100.00	
Library Bureau, Card catalog cab.	223.00	
Town of Henniker, Plans, Proctor Room	7.50	

Whitten Enterprises, Proctor Room	987.15	
TOTAL Capital Expenditures		\$ 7,213.17
TOTAL EXPENDITURES TOTAL RECEIPTS	\$ 35,692.04	\$ 20,620.35
Balance, Valley Savings 000-617-2 Balance, Valley Checking 00-759-5		14,820.19 251.50
	\$ 35,692.04	\$ 35,692.04
DOON MEMORIAL FUND		
December 31, 1977 Balance		\$ 536.00
Interest		29.38
		\$ 565.38
Expended		37.50
December 31, 1978 Balance		\$ 527.88
FRANCIS LANE CHILDS TRUST		
December 31, 1977 Balance Interest		\$ 5,128.60 403.71
		5,532.31
Expended		395.29
December 31, 1978 Balance		\$ 5,137.02
	Respectfull	y submitted,
	Mary	F. Kjellman
		<b>Treasurer</b>

### MEMORIAL DAY

Balance on Hand 1978 Appropriation	\$ 43.07 600.00	
Bektash Drum Corps Rev. Barrett, Speaker Edmunds Store, Flags Henniker Pharmacy, Ice Cream Stans Superette, Tonic Village Greenhouse, Wreaths	350.00 25.00 150.00 30.35 33.69 49.00	\$ 643.07
TOTAL Expenses		638.04
Balance on Hand, December 31, 197	8	5.03

### HENNIKER SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

### MODERATOR

Robert R. Howard, Ill

### CLERK

Christine H. Sweet

### TREASURER

J. Philip Chase

### **AUDITORS**

(Town Auditors)

Edward Hatlack
J. Kenneth Cummisky
John Savage

### SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Thomas J. Watman

### ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Laszlo F. Nagy

### SCHOOL BOARD

Helen Morrison Term Expires 1979 Ronald Taylor Term Expires 1980 Joseph Grady Term Expires 1979 Rudolph J. Houk Term Expires 1980

Laurie Grob
Term Expires 1981\*

\*Mr. Grob is filling vacancy left by Mrs. Blanchard, therefore, this position must come up for re-election in 1979.

### State of New Hampshire HENNIKER SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL WARRANT

To the inhabitants of the School District in the Town of Henniker qualified to vote in district affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Cogswell School Auditorium in said district on Tuesday, the thirteenth day of March 1979 at twelve o'clock noon to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To choose by non-partisan ballot the following school district officials with the polls open at 12:00 noon and close at 6:00 p.m.
  - A. Moderator for the ensuing year.
  - B. Clerk for the ensuing year.

  - C. Treasurer for the ensuing year.
    D. Two School Board Members for the ensuing three years.
  - E. One School Board Member for the ensuing two years.
  - F. One School Board Member for the ensuing one year.

Given under our hands at said Henniker this sixth day of February 1979.

> Helen Morrison Ronald Taylor Joseph Grady Rudolph Houk Laurie Grob

### State of New Hampshire HENNIKER SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL WARRANT

To the inhabitants of the School District in the Town of Henniker qualified to vote in district affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Cogswell School Auditorium on the thirteenth of March 1979 at 8:00 o'clock in the evening to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To hear the reports of agents, auditors, committees and officers chosen to take any action relating thereto.
- 2. To choose agents and committees in relation to any subject in this warrant.

- 3. To see what sum of money the district will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of schools, for the payment of salaries of school district officials and agents, and for the payment of statuatory obligations of the District; or any other action in relation thereto.
- 4. To see if the district will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one thousand (\$1,000)) dollars as a contingency fund, or any other action in relation thereto.
- 5. To see what sum of money the district will vote to raise and appropriate to defray cost of installation of 89 combination storm windows in the old section of the high school, or any other action in relation thereto.
- 6. To see if the District will agree to apply \$1500 of Cogswell Memorial Trust Funds for the purpose of hiring a professional consultant to provide a complete evaluation of the High School heating system, or to take any other action in relation thereto.
- 7. To see what sum of money the District will vote to raise and appropriate for School Board expenditure for consultant fees and other changes related to its study of the future physical facilities requirements of the Henniker School District, or to take any other action in relation thereto.
- 8. To see if the District will raise and appropriate the sum of \$10,000 to be put in a Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of future building and site development, or to take any other action in relation thereto.
- 9. To see if the District will vote to authorize the School Board to make application for, and accept on behalf of the District any and all grants for educational purposes which may now or hereafter be forthcoming from the U.S. Government, from the State of New Hampshire or from any other source and to appropriate such funds received, for the purposes set forth to such application; or to take any other action in relation thereto.
- 10. To transact any other business that may legally come before said meeting.

Given under our hands this said Henniker.

day of February, 1979 at

Ronald Taylor Helen Morrison Joseph Grady Rudolph Houk Laurie Grob

# HENNIKER SCHOOL DISTRICT 1978-79 FINANCIAL REPORT AND 1979-80 PROPOSED BUDGET

- 1980	sub total	Total		1,161	500	10	15		36	346	210		1,500	009	150	650	50	50		257013	21,572
ret 1979		High	,		125	2	4	150	6		52	34		150	27	162	12	12			5,403
Proposed Budget 1979 - 1980	•	High H	,		75	2	2	06	5		32	20		06	23	86	00	000			3,236
Propo	•	Elem. J. High High			300	9	6	360	22		126	82		360	06	390	30	30			12,943
		Accounts	ADMINISTRATION - 100 Series	110 Salaries for Administration	Board Members	Clerk	Moderator	Treasurer	Auditors	135 Contracted Services	Census Taker	Census State Fee	190 Other Expenses	Advertising	Legal Fees	Treasurer's Supplies	Travel out of Union - Supt.	School Board Expenses	· O OO INCIDITATION	210 Salaries	_
	sub total	Total	1,050		500	10	15	500	25	200	130	20	1,425	525	150	650	50	50		350.165	20,160
6261-826		High																			
Budget 1978-1979		J. High High																			

Elem.

284,125 3,210 21,112 800 6,843 9,150	4,181 114 955 359 163	280 86 39 243 738 1,204	5,246 545 2,859 700 849
2,750 71,031 802 200 1,710 2,287	114 262 359 95	738	1,056 228 488 46
1,650 42,619 482 120 1,027 1,373	103	349	552 122 262 262 25
6,600 170,475 1,926 21,112 480 4,106 5,490	290	280 86 39 243 422	545 1,251 350 99
210.2 Guidance 210.3 Teachers Regular Classroom Substitute Teacher Aides Team Leaders 210.5 Secretarial & Clerical 210.6 Adm. Asst. 210.91 CETA	215.3 Business Education 215.4 English - Language Arts 215.5 Foreign Language 215.6 Home Economics 215.7 Industrial Arts	215.8 Kindergarten 215.9 Learning Disabilities 215.10 Mathematics 215.14 Readiness 215.15 Science 215.16 Social Studies	220 Library & Audio-Visual 220.1 Audio-Visual Materials 220.2 Books 220.3 Film Rentals 220.5 Periodicals 220.6 Supplies
8,550 274,260 3,000 19,000 6,395 18,000	2,600		4,227
	102 736 313 114 34	54 201 174	733 220 361 59
	70	355	475 130 213 36
	156	219 9	162 1,040 350 85 60

sub total Total 222	17,884 4,709 987 726	3,465 102 1,637 1,858	233 233 234 1,673	108 135 238 999 672	2,746 546 300 400 1,500
et 1979 - High 55	1,280	170 102 1,080	20	135 353 187	163 75 375
Proposed Budget 1979 - 1980 sub to em J. High High Tc 134 33 55	889	303 557 467	190	381 129	91 45 225
Proposed Buc E lem J. High	2,741	2,992	233 234 1,463 108	108 108 238 265 356	292 180 400 900
Accounts 220.7 Audio-Visual Supplies	230 Teaching Supplies 230.1 General Supplies 230.2 Art 230.3 Business Education	230.4 English - Language Arts 230.5 Foreign Language 230.6 Home Economics 230.7 Industrial Arrs		230.12 Physical Education/Health 230.13 Pupil Personnel Service 230.14 Readiness 230.15 Science 230.16 Social Studies	Contracted Services 235.3 TV Programs 235.31 Testing General 235.32 Test. School Age Hand. 235.33 Testing Pre-School Hand. 235.34 Accountability
sub total Total	17,805				1,002
78-1979 High 85	1,094	74 101 1,053 1,019	216	65 243 403 126	102 151 52
Budget 1978-1979 J. High High 50 85	728	262 432 432 369	162	372	61 70 34
E lem 168	2,538	2,219	281 235 1,154 324	549 241 337	212 206 114

1,920	80 160	300	200	80	500		300		14,311	5,885	2,974	5,452	10,687	3,287 7,400	1 487	1,250	187	20		42,126
	52 40	300	125	20	125		75			1,471	744	1,363				468	46	13		
	28 24		75	12	75		45			883	446	818				252	32	∞		
	%		300	48	300		180			3,531	1,784	3,271	6	3,28/ 7,400		530	106	29		
290 Other Expenses of Instruction 290.1 Dues	구님	290.2 Graduation	290.4 Principals Office Supplies		290.6 College Tuition Assis.	290.7 Employee Health Insurance		HEALTH SERVICE - 400 Series	410 Salaries		410.2 Speech Ther.	410.3 School Psych,		435.2 Phys. & Occ. Therapy	490 Other Expenses			490.3 Nurse Travel	PUPIL TRANSPORTATION - 500 Series	535 Contracted Services
14,035						11,500			13,686	5,500	2,351	5,835	6,275	3,240	1,387	1,150	187	20		31,750
187		300	130	84	130		52													
28			85	12	82		34													
		1	285	9	285		114													

- 1980	Sub total Total	6,900	6,540 10,600 720	810	009		20,028	10,200	8,400	928	3,102	3,102	1,100 800	300
et 1979 -	High	1,725	1,635	360	150			2,550	2,100	232		1,224	200	75
Proposed Budget 1979 - 1980	. High	1,035	981	70	06			1,530	1,260	139		659	120	45
Propo	Elem J. High	4,140 7,500	3,924 6,360 720	380	360			6,120	5,040	557 300		1,219	480	180
	Accounts 535.1 Carrier	1. Aucoin 2. Valley	3. Paul 4. Buxton 5. Bagnell	535.3 Field Trips 535.4 Handicapped Children		OPERATION OF PLANT - 600 Series	610 Salaries 610.1 Full Time Custodians	A. Head Custodian	B. Regular Custodian 610.2 Part Time or Extra	A. Sunmer B. School Year	630 Supplies	630.1 Custodian Supplies	635 Contracted Services Rubbish Removal	Mop & Rug Cleaning
lotot duo	Sub total Total	6,900	6,000 8,100	950	009		18,524	9,526	8,044	954	3,177	3,177		
78-1979	High			208										
Budget 1978-1979	Elem J. High			136										
	E lem			456										

18,630 18,630	9,112	6,630	1,890	25	25	1.849		073	617	132	249	75	389			3.1		700	500	200
7,545	78	1,925	770		9			245	-	132	149		98						125	50
4,530	50	1,150	462		4			145	2		100		46						75	30
6,555	128	3,555	658		15			583	S			75	257			31			300	120
640 Heat 640.1 Oil	645 Utilities 645.1 Water & Sewage	645.2 Electricity 645.3 Gas		690 Other	Custodial Travel	MAINTENANCE OF PLANT - 700 Series	725 Replacement of Equipment	725 1 Ceneral		725.6 Home Ec.			725.12 Phys Ed/Health			725.16 Social Studies	725.20 Non-Instructional Gen.	726 Repairs to Equipment	726.1 Instructional	726.2 Non-Instructional
15,463	8,295	6,050	1,750	25			4,859											700		
								770	1.102	49	396		72		418	177	14		130	52
								8	3	69	288		34				20		85	34
								683				94	201	117			281		285	114

1980	sub total	3.574	1,006	1,371	110	200	187	200	200	300			3,865	300	400	009	400	400	590	175	1,000		51.615	7,786
Proposed Budget 1979 - 1980	Hioh		240	1,371	71	126	187	50	50	75				86	130	325	130	100	260	4	250			1,946
sed Budg	High	- 9	136		39	74		30	30	45				52	20	175	70	9	140	26	150			1,168
Propos	E. lem L. High		630					120	120	180				150	200	100	200	240	190	105	009			4,672
	Accounts	735 Contracted Services - List		735.3 Business Ed.	-	735.7 Ind. Arts	•				735.24 Rubbish	735.25 Mop/Rug Cleaning	766 Repairs to Building - List	.1 Glass	.2 Lumber-Hardware	.3 Furnace	.4 Electrical	.5 Plumbing	.6 Sheet Rock-Paint	.7 Miscellaneous	.8 Handicapped Access	FIXED CHARGES - 800 Series	850 District Contributions	.1 Employees' Retirement .2 Teachers' Retirement
	sub total Total	4,801											1,800	1,800								32,024		576 6,636
978-1979	High	,	238	1,321	2	126		28	22	315	203													
Budget 1978-1979	Elem J. High	,	135		36	74		51	34	185	133													
	E lem		627					171	114	100	‡	300												

14,488 3,622 6,037 24,147 2,722 680 1,134 4,536 8,806 2,201 3,669 14,676 282 71 117 470	24 6 10 40 3,049 762 1,271 5,082 919 230 383 1,532 34 8 14 56	8,495 2,124 3,540 14,159 6,954 1,739 2,897 11,590	10,810 4,324 6,486 10,810	12,435 429 3,851 7,155 11,435 1,000 1,000	922	28 51 79	20 20
.3 Fed. Ins. Con. Act .4 Unemployment Comp5 BC-BS .6 Term Life	855       Insurance         855.1       Bond         855.2       Fire, SMP         855.3       Workmans         855.4       Vehicle	SCHOOL LUNCH & MILK - 900 Series 975.10 Federal 975.20 District 975.30 Fees	STUDENT BODY ACT 1000 Series 1010 Salaries	1075. Other 1075.1 Transfer of Monies for General 1075.2 Drivers Ed.			126/.A/ Industrial Arts 1267.A9 Learning Disabilities
22,152	5,292 40 3,728 1,500	22,723 11,441 2,000 9,282	9,260 9,260	14,883 12,583 2,300	3,262		
					7	÷ 68 5	101
					C	129 36	3
					706.6	707,7	11

- 1980 sub total Total 11 22 590	41,922 1,400 2,304 28,049 10,169	22,456	3,000
111	1,400 2,304 7,012 2,542	2,956	750
Proposed Budget 1979 - 1980 sub tot Total  11  22  590	4,208 1,526		450
Proposed Budget 1: Elem. J. High High 22	16,829 6,101	19,500	1,800
Accounts 1267.A10 Mathematics 1267.A11 Music 1267.A14 Readiness 1267.A15 Science 1267.A16 Social Studies 1267.A20 Handicapped	OUTGOING TRANSFERS - 1400 Series 1477 Expend. to other school Dist. or other administrative units 1477.1 Tuition - General 1477.2 Tuition VocEd 1477.3 S.U. No. 24 - General S.U. No. 24 Spec. Ed.	1479 Tuition to other than Pub. School 1479.1 Tuition 11477.2 Transportation	MISC. ACCOUNTS - 1900 Series 1982 Special Accts. Possible Federal Grants
sub total Total	34,625 1,250 900 22,099 10,376	9,306 4,653 4,653	
Budget 1978-1979 Elem. J. High High 306 49 52			

634,626 TOTAL

	1,000 250 1,000 700,011	752 700,011	eceipts Total	21,496	24,652
	150 2	411,689 102,570 185,752	Proposed Receipts Sub Total Total	7,340 1,666 11,590 900	1,000 14,448 6,500 400 2,304
		9 102,5	Pro Sı		
	009	411,68			
SUB TOTAL	CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION	GRAND TOTAL	RECEIPTS	10 Revenue From Local Sources 19 Other Revenue from local sources Trust Funds Temporary Deposits (Interest) School Lunch Fees Gate Receipts	<ul> <li>30 Revenue from State Sources</li> <li>34 Driver Education</li> <li>35 Handicapped Ed.</li> <li>36 Sweepstakes</li> <li>39 Other</li> <li>Foster Children Aid</li> <li>Voc. Ed. Reimbursement</li> </ul>
592,785	1,000	639,952			
16,389			Receipts b Total	3,400 1,900 9,282 900	2,300 5,900 400 1,615
6,101			Budgeted Receipts Total Sub Total	15,482	10,215
19,351			ÄÄ	15	10

Receipts   Total	17,679	4,240	68,067
Proposed Receipts Sub Total Total	3,000 14,159 520	4,240	
	<ul> <li>40 Revenue from Federal Sources</li> <li>41 N.D.E.A. Title II, III &amp; IV</li> <li>45 School Lunch &amp; Milk</li> <li>46 Flood Control</li> <li>47 CETA</li> </ul>	80 Amounts Received from other School Districts in the State 81 Tuition	TOTAL ESTIMATED TOTAL to be Raised by District
Budgeted Receipts Total Sub Total	11,441 450 18,000	3,836	
Budgete Total	29,891	3,836	59,424 580,528

### HENNIKER SCHOOL EXPENDITURES 1977 - 1978

NOTE: Due to the large amount of columns required for the budget the 1977-78 Expenditures are listed below:

-	
100 Administration	
Salaries for Administration	
110.1 District Officers	\$ 1,000.59
135 Contracted Services	305.30
190.1 Other Expenses - District Officers	1,946.41
200 Instruction	
Salaries - 210.1 Principals	19,582.98
210.3 Teachers	242,813.69
210.4 Other Instructional Staff	5,392.87
210.5 Secretarial & Clerical Assistants	6,602.54
210.9 Other Salaries	17,544.21
215. Textbooks	2,646.45
<ul><li>220. School Libraries &amp; Audiovisual Materials</li><li>230. Teaching Supplies</li></ul>	5,629.68
230. Teaching Supplies	14,955.88
235. Contracted Services	974.99
290. Other Expenses	11,328.14
300 Attendance Services	
310. Salaries - CETA	6,548.91
400 Health Services	
410. Salaries	5,103.95
490. Other Expenses	5,236.24
500 Pupil Transportation	
535. Contracted Services	30,968.73
600 Operation of Plant	
610. Salaries	17,275.60
630. Supplies, Except Utilities	3,858.61
635. Contracted Services	720.00
640. Heat for Buildings	14,822.06
645. Utilities, Except Heat	7 <b>,883.</b> 03
700 Maintenance of Plant	
725. Replacement of Equipment	6,125.51
726. Repairs to Equipment	414.65
735. Contracted Services	3,173.41
766. Repairs to Buildings	5,351.22
800 Fixed Charges	
850.2 Teachers' Retirement System	6,608.38
850.3 Federal Insurance Cont. Act (F.I.C.A.)	23,573.32
855. Insurance	5,924.80
900 School Lunch & Special Milk Program	·
Expenditures & Transfers of Monies	
975.1 Federal Monies	13,018.98
1000 Student-Body Activities	
1010. Salaries	6,725.02
1010. Oalailes	0,723.02

1075. Expenditures & Transfers of Monies	7,243.66
1200 Capital Outlay	
1265. Sites	1,750.00
1266. Buildings	4,757.75
1267. Equipment	8,311.82
1400 Outgoing Transfer Accounts	
1477.11 Tuition to Public Academies	253.52
1477.2 Transportation	398.00
1477.3 Disrict Share of Supervisory Union Exp.	27,821.00
1479.1 Tuition to Private Nonsectarian Schools	3,072.00
1479.2 Transportation	160.86
1600 Adult Education	
1690. Other Expenses	720.00
TOTAL Net Expenditures for All Purposes	\$548,544.76
Cash on hand June 30, 1978 - General Fund	42,118.51
Cash on hand June 50, 1770 General 1 and	12,110.51
GRAND TOTAL NET EXPENDITURES	\$590,663.27
GRAND TOTAL NET EXPENDITURES  Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions	" ,
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp	" ,
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions RECEIPTS	" ,
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977	" ,
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts)	\$590,663.27
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977	oenditures
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Exp and Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts)	\$590,663.27
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60 TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS	\$590,663.27 11,503.18
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60  TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES	\$590,663.27 11,503.18
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60  TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES Total Net Expenditures Plus Cash on Hand June	\$590,663.27 11,503.18 
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60  TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES Total Net Expenditures Plus Cash on Hand June 30, 1978. (Agrees with grand total net expenditures)	\$590,663.27 11,503.18 
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60  TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES Total Net Expenditures Plus Cash on Hand June	\$590,663.27 11,503.18 
Explanation of Difference Between Net (Actual) Expand Gross Transactions RECEIPTS Total Net Receipts Plus Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 (Agrees with grand total net receipts) Receipts Recorded under Item 60  TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES Total Net Expenditures Plus Cash on Hand June 30, 1978. (Agrees with grand total net expenditures)	\$590,663.27 11,503.18 

### SCHOOL BOARD'S CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the information contained in this report was taken from official records and is complete and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. The accounts are kept in accordance with Section 24 of Chapter 71 of the Revised Statutes Annotated, and upon forms prescribed by the Department of Revenue Administration.

Thomas J. Watman Superintendent Joseph Grady Helen Morrison Ronald Taylor Rudolph J. Houk Laurie Grob

Henniker School Board

### REPORT OF THE SCHOOL BOARD

On behalf of the Henniker School Board, I wish to take this opportunity to report to you a few of the many activities the Board

has undertaken over the past year.

The volume of Board work has increased to a point that, as of two years ago, the number of Board meetings has been increased from one to two a month. The Board now meets the first and third Tuesdays of each month in the High School library at 7:00 P.M. Exceptions are posted in local papers. Board responsibilities include financial management, personnel administration, school district policy formulation, curriculum development, school building management, and long-range planning for the district. Without the able assistance of the Supervisory Union staff, the staff of our school district, the many tireless Henniker citizens who serve on our various committees, and the support of you, the citizens, the successful completion of our endeavors would be impossible. For your information, listed below are a few of the projects that we have completed or which are now in progress.

### SCHOOL BUILDING MAINTAINANCE

The routine maintainence of the school buildings has been expanded to include improvement of both the exterior and the interior appearance. Painting and repairs have been undertaken in both buildings. The success of this program has been due mainly to Mr. Charlie Reade, our head custodian, and his summer staff.

### STORM WINDOWS

During the past Summer, storm windows were installed over the windows of the Elementary School. The project was put out to bid, with Frabar Aluminum Products of Weare winning the contract. The Winter comfort of the building will be improved, and fuel oil consumption should be reduced as a result of this improvement.

### FIRE SAFETY

As a result of an inspection from the State Fire Marshall's office certain fire safety improvements to the Elementary School were strongly recommended. Enclosure of the basement stairs, installation of a pushout fire escape window in the third grade room, and the installation of an expanded fire alarm system to include smoke detectors and emergency lighting will be completed this year.

### PLAYGROUND

Major strides have been made in the improvement of the play-ground area. The asphalt service entrance has been completed, and it is intended that the remaining area directly behind the Elementary School be used for play and closed off to cars. The members of the Playground Committee led by Linda Patterson and Kathy Hatt, have done a terrific job. To date, there is a large climbing structure with a platform and cargo net, as well as a smaller climbing struc-

ture. Watching the children virtually covering these structures provides proof enough that the playground equipment was much needed. Further construction will take place on the large structure, and the addition of equipment such as a small platform theater, and obstacle course, a sand box, a jumping pit, and a balance beam are planned for the coming Summer. It should be noted that most of the supplies have been donated by local businesses, to whom we extend our grateful thanks. Special thanks go to Tom Johnson for the donation of all of the lumber.

### CURRICULUM

The Curriculum Committee has been very active in several areas:

### a. Survival Skills

It has become a great concern to many people nationwide that many of our high school graduates are not well educated in such basic survival skills as understanding newspaper and magazine articles, consumer awareness, library skills, parenthood skills, career exploration, and many others. It is the philosophy of the Curriculum Committee and of this Board that each student should receive training in a variety of these skills. The major effort in this area has been to identify life skills which we think should be taught, and to survey the curriculum of the school system. In this manner we have attempted to identify areas in which these are presently taught, as well as to develop a program for further instruction in these skills. To date more emphasis is being placed upon these skills throughout the curriculum, with special emphasis on library skills at both the elementary and high school levels.

b. Writing Skills

Another area of nationwide concern has been an apparently widespread inability of high school graduates to adequately express themselves in writing. In order to identify areas of deficiency and to form the basis for future tests, writing samples from the ninth and eleventh grades were taken in May, 1978. These were then evaluated for form, content, and grammar by several teachers and members of the committee. At present, specific time for instruction in formal writing in the elementary grades has been implemented. In addition, teachers are now correcting all student papers with a standard correcting code for writing errors, regardless of subject matter. More emphasis on formal writing has been instituted at the high school level, and all ninth graders will now be required to take a course in English Composition. Writing samples of all high school students were obtained in the Fall, but at the date of this report have not been compiled.

c. Elementary Science Program

The Curriculum Committee found a need for a more formal science program at the elementary school level. At present, available science programs are being evaluated and more science instruction is being given as available texts and equipment per-

mit. A full science program is envisioned by the 1979-80 school year.

I take this opportunity to publicly congratulate the Curriculum Committee and our School Staff for the strides made in these important areas. Committee members who have worked so hard on these projects include Jolene Schillinger, Kris Sweet, Nancy Tisdale, Terry Aucoin, Pauline Mitchener, and Eve Goss.

### ACCOUNTABILITY

In order that New Hampshire citizens might improve the education of their children and have a measure of their efforts, the State has embarked upon a "planning and student competency program in an effort to constructively improve our utilization of the total investment of New Hampshire's citizens in the education of children." The basis for the accountability plan is "that improved student learning requires that we, as educators, cleraly describe our intended outcomes for students, develop a system for monitoring their progress toward achievement of these outcomes, institute a process for reporting that progress to the people of our respective communities, and formulate management plans which are consistent with assessment results and will promote improved student performance." Curriculum content areas to be assessed under the State requirements include English language performance in reading and writing, mathematics, New Hamsphire history and government, and United States history and government. In addition, the Henniker School Board is including science in its own accountability plan.

The plan must be in effect by June, 1978, so the Henniker Accountability Planning Committee, comprised of two parents; eight faculty members, and one Board member, will not have much idle time. The Committee is now completing work on the pre-plan, which will provide the framework for the design of the actual plan

in the next few months.

### **FUTURE PLANNING**

As a result of recent new construction and development in town, and an apparent increase in town population, a committee was formed to make an inventory of the present school facilities and to determine town and school population trends. The report of this committee appears elsewhere in this town report. The report is currently under study for further planning steps, and a second committee is likely to be carrying on further study by the time you read this report.

Although there are other subjects worthy of mention, this, our first report in several years has been long enough. On behalf of the

Board I ask for your continuing support, help, and ideas.

Respectfully submitted

Joseph I. Grady

December 17, 1978

### SCHOOL DISTRICT TREASURER'S REPORT

FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 1977 TO JUNE 30, 1978

Cash on Hand July 1, 1977 Received from Selectmen Revenue from State Sources Revenue from Federal Sources Received from Tuitions Received as income from Trust Funds Received from all Other Sources	\$500,960.98 9,843.73 13,879.12 1,759.00 7,340.33 9,711.98	\$ 58,671.31
TOTAL RECEIPTS		543,495.1+
Total Amount Available for Fiscal Year Less School Board Orders Paid		\$602,166.45 560,047.94
Balance on Hand June 30, 1978		\$ 42,118.51
	•	Philip Chase t Treasurer

### DETAILED STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS

Cash, Telephone Reimbursement	\$ 4.50
Bank of N. H., July Interest	2,156.62
State Treasury, May Lunch Reimbursement	1,182.33
State Treasury, June Lunch Reimbursement	1,016.99
Bank of N. H., August Interest	184.43
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
State Treasury, Sweepstakes Program	4,724.43
H.H.S. Activities Assn., Broken Door	20.00
Union Leader Corp., Check No. 2566 Retd.	9.70
Bank of N.H., September Interest	171.99
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
State Treasury, September Advance Lunch Reimb.	860.37
State Treasury, September Lunch Reimbursement	168.05
Henniker Trust Fund, L.A. Cogswell H.S. Fund	2,514.00
N.H. Retirement System, Check No. 116 Retd.	4,194.63
N.H. Retirement System, Check No. 138 Retd.	148.68
Merrimack County, C.E.T.A. Advance	1,500.00
Bank of N.H., October Interest	189.35
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
Bank of N.H., November Interest	177.23
State Treasury, October Advance Lunch Reimb.	860.37
Mainco School Supply, Refund	100.00
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
Supervisory Union No. 24, C.E.T.A. Advance	900.00

Maria E. Colby, Window Broken by Student	24.60
Bank of N.H., December Interest	175.83
Henniker Trust Funds, D.W. & E.L. Cogswell Fund	4,792.81
Henniker Trust Funds, George H. Dodge Fund	33.52
George Woollett, Check No. 836 Cancelled	182.70
Merrimack County Treasury, Flood Control Payment	519.98
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
Bank of N.H., January Interest	194.65
U.S. Treasury, Tax Refund	341.71
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
The Boston Globe, Check Cancelled	58.50
Bank of N.H., February Interest	150.81
G.K.G. Productions, Rent 3 Stage Flats	50.00
Hillsboro-Deering School District, Tuition - 3 Bacons	1,759.00
State Treasury, School Lunch Reimbursement	994.42
State Treasury, Lunch Reimbursement, Oct., Dec.	2,023.53
State Treasury, Driver Education	720.00
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
Bank of N.H., Interest for March	147.36
H.H.S. Activities Assn., Basketball Receipt	781.70
U.S. Treasury, F.I.C.A. Overpayment	71.98
State Treasury, Lunch Reimbursement, January	1,021.41
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	50,000.00
Bank of N.H., April Interest	198.82
Davis & Towle Insurance Agency, Ins. Dividend	90.00
State Treasury, School Lunch	1,566.41
Hillsboro-Deering School District, Refund-Psychologist	4,003.27
Bank of N.H., May Interest	193.01
Town of Henniker, Appropriation	100,960.98
N.H. Retirement System, Check No. 1431 Retd.	55.99
Barry Gordon, Check No. 1701 Retd.	2,091.09
Paulette Flante, Check No. 1717 Retd.	100.83
Bank of N.H., Savings Interest	14.86
Concord Savings, Savings Interest	16.08
N.H. Savings, Savings Interest	95.74
Merrimack County Savings, Savings Interest	23.31
Nancy Carr, Damage to School	5.00
State Treasury, March School Lunch	851.57

### SCHOOL LUNCH REPORT

### FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1978

Beginning Balance Receipts: Lunch Sales - Children Lunch Sales - Adults Milk Sales - Children Milk Sales - Adult Reimbursement	\$ 9,665.13 614.60 539.69 12.90 13,232.65	\$ 2,068.17
Total Receipts		24,064.97
Total Available Expenses: Labor Food Paper Misc.	\$10,624.38 9,783.39 263.98 153.50	\$26,133.14
Total Expenses		20,825.25
Balance - June 30, 1978		\$ 5,307.89

### SCHOOL CLERK'S REPORT OF MEETING

The 1978 Henniker School District meeting was called to order at 8:15 PM on March 14, 1978, in the Cogswell School Auditorium by Robert Howard, III, Moderator.

I. VOTED, to accept the reports of agents, auditors, committees, and officers as printed in the Annual report and supplementary financial report.

II. VOTED, to authorize the School Board to choose agents and committees as they feel may be appropriate to school business.

III. VOTED, to authorize to appoint a space study committee of from five to nine members to study future building needs.

IV. VOTED, to raise and appropriate the sum of \$634,626.00 for support of schools, for payment of salaries of school district officials and agents, and for the payment of statutory obligations of the District.

V. VOTED, to raise and appropriate the sum of one thousand

dollars (\$1,000.00) as a contingency fund.

VI. VOTED, to raise and appropriate the sum of \$500.00 to defray the cost of installation of smoke detectors in the Elementary School. VII. VOTED, to raise and appropriate the sum of \$3,000.00 for constructing a 12 foot wide curbed asphalt access road behind the elementary school, site preparations for renovation of the playground and the purchase of materials for the construction of a playground and the purchase of materials needed for the construction

of playground equipment.

VIII - IX. PASS OVER. Articles 8, 9, 10, and 11 were voted to

pass over

XII. VOTED, to authorize the School Board on its behalf to enter into and bind the district to any requisite agreements with the district of Concord, and the State Board of Education, so that the District will be enabled to participate in the Regional Vocational Educational Center Program conducted in the Concord School District serving Region II.

XIII. VOTED, to appropriate such funds as may have been received from the U.S. Government pursuant to the CETA program to the payment of the expenses created in the 1977-78 budget by the payment of funds to CETA employees and the related costs.

XÍV. VOTED, to authorize the School Board to make application for, and accept on behalf of the District any and all grants or funds which may now or hereafter be forthcoming from the U.S. Government, State of N.H., or from any other sources, for the school year 1978-79 and to appropriate any funds received from said grants or other funds to the payment of obligations of the District for which said funds constitute reimbursement.

XV. Voted, to authorize the School Board to accept, on behalf of the District, a gift of land adjacent to the Athletic Field from Stuart

Davis.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:27 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Christine H. Sweet School District Clerk

## REPORT OF THE HENNIKER SCHOOL FACILITIES STUDY COMMITTEE

### NOVEMBER 1978

### I. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Demographic trends for the year 1940 through 1970 show that the population of Henniker has remained at a level of approximately 1,300 people, excluding New England College students.

Since 1970, however, the population has shown a growth of 700

to its present level of 2,000 in August of 1978.

Henniker School population, readiness through grade twelve, at the end of the academic year 1977 was 347. At the start of the academic year 1978, the population increased to 359. Projections of school enrollment are 370 in 1980; 430 in 1983, and 460 in 1985. These projections include Readiness through grade twelve.

The elementary school will reach capacity in approximately the year 1979-1980, and the high school in approximately 1981-1982. The kindergarten is not projected over capacity with the use of

double sessions.

Inventory of Present School Facilities

A facility layout, to scale, is in process of completion. Shown by floor are the kindergarten, elementary and high school buildings. Heating, Ventilation, and Lighting Systems

The high school heating plant is old and running at or near

capacity.

Both high school and elementary heating plants provide too hot or cold conditions in many rooms.

A ventilation system has been eliminated in the high school and

no formal system exists in the elementary school.

Eleven rooms had areas of illumination below the State standard. All flourescent fixtures require shielding.

Efficiency of Facilities Within the Present Curriculum

The lack of space, both for storage and expansion, are common constraints within all facilities.

Conformance to State Handicapped Legislation

Both the elementary and high schools have twenty categories each of changes required to meet handicapped legislation.

### II DETAILED ANALYSIS

Demographic Trends

The following table represents Henniker's population without New England College Students. The years 1940 through 1970 document past trends and show a stable population for those years. Growth trends materialize in 1970. In August 1977 our population was 1930.

Population of Henniker - 1940 through the year 2000

	Actual	,	Projected
Year	Population	Year	Population
1940	1330	1980	2200
1950	1470	1990	2950
1960	1270	2000 -	3700
1970	1300		
1977	1930		

Table 1

From 1977 to the end of 1978, forty house completions were anticipated, causing an increase of 115 people to the Henniker population.

Projected population is based on 24 housing unit completions per year to the year 2000. This increase represents an average yearly growth of 69 people. Projected population is expected to reach 3700 in the year 2000.

There were approximately 250 house lots before the planning board when we began this study. Some of the larger divisions have now been approved. For planning and projections, the Facility Study committee has a high confidence level in the immediate population impact to the year 1985.

Population projections are further based on a survey of forty houses in our most recent building developments. The purpose of this effort was to define the average size of the household unit, the impact of school age children on our school facilities and distribution by kindergarten, elementary and high school. The numbers of retired newcomers and pre-school age children were not overlooked. School population and Capacity. June 1970 - June 1990

The projection of school population into the year 1990 was accomplished by starting with fixed information. Enrollments in kindergarten through grade twelve were established on September 13, 1978. The years 1979 through 1990 are projected as follows:

Average kindergarten class - 24 (statistics 1970-1978)

Kindergarten increases 1.7 students per year

Grades 1 - 6 increase 1.9 students per year

Grades 7 - 12 increase 0.8 students per year

These extrapolations are based on 24 house completions per year until 1990. The spread of students is based on a survey of new homes as follows:

a. 40 units surveyed

(Homes in Tanglewood, Village Green & Longview Drive)

b. 40 Children for 40 units - average 1 child per unit

c. 40 children affected the school as follows:

1. 20% High School

2. 47.5% Elementary School

3. 7.5% Kindergarten 4. 25% Pre-School

Therefore, with 24 houses per year, the impact on our community is as stated above: Kindergarten increases 1.7 students, Elementary school increases 1.9 students and high school increases .8 students per year. This analysis is presented below in tabular form.

### Henniker School Population Graded R - 12

	School		School		School
Year	Population	Year	Population	Year	Population
1978	347	1983	430	1987	485
1979	3 <b>5</b> 9	1984	447	1988	497
1980	370	1985	460	1989	507
1981	383	1986	475	1990	506
1982	411				

Table 2

Capacity

The State Department of Education provided a survey of Henniker elementary and high schools for capacity usage. This survey extracted square footage area by classroom and expressed that number in a pupil capacity equivalent. As a result the Elementary school is designated at capacity with 208 students and the high school at capacity with 181. The high school capacity represents an 80% utilization factor.

Projected school population and capacity figures for our elementary and high schools are represented in the table below.

### Capacity vs. Student Population Elementary and High School

Year	1979	1980	1981	1982	1983	1984	1985	1986	1987	1988	1989
Elem.											
Pop. H-S	201	209*	210	219	224	224	232	242	244	249	254
H-S											
Pop.	158	159	173	192*	**203	223	227	233	242	248	253
	*Eleme	ntary	Scho	ol re	aches	capa	city				

\*\*High School reaches capacity

Recommendation

Both a short and long range plan are required for additional student capacity. A short range plan to insure capacity by 1980 in the elementary and in 1982 for the high school. The long range plan should be developed to resolve future space requirements for our educational facilities in the future. Inventory of Present School Facilities

A school facility layout partially documents to date, the school buildings by floor. Classroom areas, storage and passageways are defined to scale. Although some of these documents are not furnished at this time, work will continue to insure their completion of a record for future planning efforts.

Heating, Ventilation and Lighting Systems

The high school and elementary heating plants do not provide uniform heat distribution to the facilities that they service. A record of cost expenditures for the high school heating plant was not available in sufficient detail to indicate a trend of disbursements. Comments indicated that the high school system was close to capacity and more troublesome than the elementary system.

The existing high school ventilating system has been closed to conserve on heat. Both high school nad elementary use windows to provide ventilation as required. Both facilities experience hot

or cold areas during the heating season.

A favorable report was issued under Ventilation, Heat and Humidity by the Bureau of Consumer Protection for all school facilities. It is also noted that the study was effected during the start

of the school year.

Rooms 3, 4 and 5 had areas of sub-standard illumination in the high school. With the exception of grade six, all rooms had areas of sub-standard illumination in the elementary school and kindergarten. All facilities require shielding on exposed fluorescent tubes.

Recommendations

Correction of the uneven heat distribution in the elementary and high schools is a costly undertaking. A recommendation is made to weigh our future needs for space against any overhaul of our

heating plants, specifically the high school.

Shielding of fluorescent tubes should be implemented. Correction of poor lighting can be satisfied by illuminating only those areas in rooms below the 30 to 50 foot candles recommended by the state. Conformance with State Handicapped Legislation

School systems in New Hampshire are required by January 3,

1980, to comply with legislation for handicapped students. The legislation deals with modification of school facilities for the handicapped. A survey of the Henniker school facilities highlights the areas needing modification as follows:

A. High School

- 1. Lower section accessible with minor modification
- 2. Entrance doors and corridor doors need windows
- 3. Bathroom stalls in locker room inaccessible
- 4. Shower area inaccessible and controls too high
- 5. Entrance to nurses room too narrow
- 6. No warning lights on fire alarm

7. Rear entrance inaccessible

- 8. Stairs from basement to first floor inaccessible
- 9. Front lower entrance (Public Library side) is inaccessible
- 10. Bathroom areas inaccessible and doors open in
- 11. No entrance to first floor
- 12. Light switches and fountains are too high
- 13. Home Economics room sinks and stoves are inaccessible Second Floor
- 14. Fountain too high
- 15. Doors without windows
- 16. Girls and boys rooms need modifications
- 17. Library inaccessible
- 18. Door handles instead of knobs
- 19. Inward opening doors need a space for wheelchair confined people to open them
- Need special parking area reserved for handicapped near curbless area and proper entrance way.

### B. Elementary School

- 1. Curb around elementary school needs modification
- 2. Need a ramp to the entrance
- 3. No side railing on entrance stairs
- 4. Removal of threshold from front entrance
- 5. Water fountains at proper height and altered to accomodate a wheel chair one needed on each floor
- 6. Fire alarm and light switches must be lowered
- 7. Firebells need flashing lights
- 8. Second floor needs a fire exit
- 9. Doors need widening
- 10. Rear entrance needs a ramp
- 11. Bumps in carpeting need to be removed
- 12. Basement area totally inaccessible
- 13. Library doors too narrow
- 14. Toilets need modification (handrailing & widening of doors)
- 15. No adequate fire exit from basement
- 16. Upstairs inaccessible
- 17. Upstairs doors too narrow and they open into each other
- 18. All sinks do not meet handicap specifications
- 19. Stairs illegal for crutches and canes
- 20. Need for non slip floors

Recomendations

The State has specified a deadline for conformance to the handicapped legislation. The School Committee should prepare to meet this deadline.

Respectfully submitted,

Laurie Grob

William Hatt

Lorraine Knapton

Ralph Minichello

George Sanborn

Evelyn Woollett

Space Study Committee

### PRINCIPAL'S REPORT

The purpose of this report is to provide the community with information concerning what is being called an Accountability Plan.

The State Board of Education has mandated that all school districts must develop and implement an Accountability Plan by June, 1981. The chief purposes of the plan are to provide a consistent link between educational outcomes and planning and to provide to the public reliable reporting of the results our schools are getting.

With the above purposes in mind, the State Department of Education has mandated that each district's plan include the following: A.) Areas to be addressed: 1) English/Language Arts; 2) Mathematics; 3) United States History and Government. B.) The following six step planning process applied to all areas addressed: 1) Develop essential student outcomes; 2) Develop performance indicators for each essential outcome; 3) Design and carry out sound assessment procedures: 4) Analyze the results of the assessment data; 5) Report assessment results to the State Department of Education and to the local community; 6) Develop a management plan based on the assessment results. C.) Test or assess outcomes at three different grade levels. In summary, the plan should be a management system that clarifies educational outcomes, measures student achievement of these outcomes, develops a process for reporting student progress to the people of the community and formulates plans consistent with the testing results to improve student performance in the future.

To comply with this accountability mandate of the State Board of Education, the Henniker School Board directed me to establish a committee to develop an accountability plan. Along with this directive, the School Board instructed that science would be an additional area to be addressed.

The committee was established. Its members and their representation are as follows: Helen Morrison, Henniker School Board;

Jolene Schillinger and Theresa Aucoin, Parents/Community; Gayle Crane and Nona Sneed, Elementary Teachers; Virginia Pinard, Junior High Teacher; Maria-Lisa Davis, Tom Moore, Bruce Rutland and Walter Sidney, High School Teachers; Robert Scully,

Principal and Chairman.

The initial task of the committee after becoming familiar with the overall concept of what is involved in the accountability plan was to develop policy and procedures for itself. This was done and formally accepted by your school board. The committee is charged with developing an accountability plan to be submitted to the School Board for their approval.

Since this past October the committee has been meeting weekly. Its first objective was to develop a pre-plan that, at a minimum, should outline implementation procedures and establish benchmarks for the completion of each of the mandated six steps. This will have been completed by January, 1978, to meet an additional state re-

quirement.

Presently, the committee continues to work toward the full implementation of the plan. During the next two years an enormous amount of people's time and energy will be devoted to this task. It should be understood that the committee's role is one of a steering committee. It does not have the expertise to accomplish by itself all that is involved in this undertaking. Therefore it will be necessary to utilize resources and resource people from outside the district. This means that monies will have to be budgeted for this purpose. As of this writing, the amount of money necessary has not been determined.

Voting to approve or to disapprove funds necessary to accomplish this accountability plan is by no means the extent of community involvement. One of the features of the accountability concept is to have community input. In addition to community representation on the Henniker Accountability Committee, you will be asked to attend informational sessions, perhaps to complete surveys and questionnaires, to give your ideas on essential student outcomes and actively participate in other ways. When these times come, your cooperation will be appreciated.

Again, thank you for your continued understanding, coopera-

tion and support.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert J. Scully

Principal

### SUPERINTENDENT'S ANNUAL MESSAGE

To the Citizens of the Henniker School District

This report attempts to highlight the major accomplishments of the past school year, our current major goals, and the major short and long-term needs of the schools. I hope that the report will provide some idea of the broader areas that are of concern to this administration.

### SPACE NEEDS

The continuing population growth in Henniker is placing increased demands upon our facilities. Conservative population projections indicate that we will quickly be reaching the point where the District must consider providing additional space for its students.

While the programs currently being offered students continue at reasonable levels of effectiveness, increased student enrollments can have a significant negative impact. With all building space being utilized, the district should be prepared to support the efforts of the School Board to study the various alternatives. The decisions that must be made in the next two years will have long-range impact upon the quality of education available to students.

### **GUIDANCE**

The stresses of modern day society are reflected in the increasing problems that our students must face: Such as drug use, career planning, college acceptance, broken homes, conflict situations. The Henniker School System is currently one of the few schools that does not have a full-time Guidance Counselor available to assist students in properly meeting these challenges.

It is unrealistic to believe that the school principal can both effectively administer school discipline and also provide effective counseling for students. Part-time personnel have also been tried, but it is difficult, if not impossible, to provide good service to students if the staff member is not available when the student needs assistance.

An effective Guidance Counselor can provide valuable assistance to students, their parents and teachers. The absence of this service represents an important student need that requires the action of the citizens of Henniker.

### 1977-1978 GOALS

Last year six goals were set to the Henniker Schools. While all goals were not totally achieved, a large measure of success resulted from this first attempt at formal goal setting. (1) A greater emphasis has been placed upon teacher evaluation, and more differentiated evaluations have resulted. (2) Enforcement of school rules was a

primary emphasis during teacher evaluation and resulted in improvements in this area. These areas are of on-going importance and we expect that high standards of teacher performance will be a continual goal of the administration. (3) In other areas, the individualized language arts and mathematics programs were effectively implemented in the Junior High School, and (4) the Principal has continued working with the Citizens Curriculum Advisory Committee on methods to improve writing skills throughout the school system. (5) A study of potential competency-based graduation requirements was deferred in order to meet the state requirement to develop a District Accountability system. (6) While there were increased efforts at improving parent participation in the school and providing increased information, these areas will merit continued efforts in the future.

### 1978-1979 GOALS

Five major goals have been established for the current school year: (1) Continued efforts at evaluation of teachers - with an emphasis upon experienced reachers (2) the development of the District's state mandated Accountability Plan (3) providing assistance to the School Board's Space Study Committee (4) Evaluation and improvement of the K-12 Social Studies program and (5) continued efforts to inform and involve the public.

### 1977-1978 SUPERINTENDENT'S GOALS

The major accomplishments of the past year were: (1) setting of annual administrative goals (2) adoption and implementation of a procedure for evaluation of Principals (3) adoption of written administrative procedures (4) improved budgetary preparation procedures (5) expanded assistance to the School Board and Principal (6) re-organization of the Supervisory Union Office staff and its procedures to provide more effective service (7) establishment of a community education program (8) a major continuing effort to improve effective evaluation of teachers and (9) development of a formal method for School Boards to evaluate the performance of the Superintendent of Schools.

### CONCLUSION

The support of the citizens of Henniker for their school children has been greatly appreciated. We will continue our efforts to act in ways that will merit your continued support.

Submitted by,

Thomas J. Watman Superintendent of Schools

# SALARIES OF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS SUPERVISORY UNION #24

1979 - 1980

State Share	\$ 4,944.00
Share Paid by Districts	
Henniker	7,966.12
Hillsboro-Deering	15,788.90
Hopkinton	16,524.03
Stoddard	3,217.89
Washington	2,510.51
Windsor	226.55
	\$ 51,178.00

### SUPERVISORY UNION BUDGET

1979 - 1980

\$360,797

Total Expenditures

Less Estimated Receip	ts	131,750
Amount to be Shared	by Districts	\$229,047
DISTRICT	Gen. budget Spec. E	d. Total
Henniker	\$ 28,049.00 \$ 10,169.0	00 \$ 38,218.00
Hillsboro-Deering	55,594.00 28,589.0	00 84,183.00
Hopkinton	58,183.00 22,811.0	00 80,994.00
Stoddard	11,331.00 444.0	00 11,775.00
Washington	8,840.00 4,240.0	00 13,080.00
Windsor	797 <b>.</b> 00	797.00
TOTALS	\$162,794.00 \$ 66,253.0	00 \$229,047.00

# SUPERVISORY UNION BUDGET APPORTIONMENT

Pupil Combined Distri	Percent	17.23	34.15	35.74	96.9	5.43	.49 797.00	00 001
1977-78								0 70 4 6
Valuation	Percent	18.06	28.42	31.20	12.58	8.76	86.	0000
Equalized	Valuation	\$ 38,928,712	61,277,271	67,261,945	27,111,929	18,880,404	2,117,057	Or of Hall Brook

# SPECIAL EDUCATION BUDGET

Share of Special Education computed at 50% ADM\* of schools in district and 50% of Special Education class.

District Share	\$ 10,169.00	28,589.00	22,811.00	444.00	4,240.00	0.00	\$ 66,253.00
Combined Percent	15.35	43.15	34.43	.67	6.40	0.00	100.00
Class Percent	14.28	46.43	28.58		10.71		100.00
1977-78 Spec Class	4	13	~		3		28
Pupil Percent	16.41	39.87	40.28	1.34	2.10		100.00
1977-78 ADM	358.8	871.5	880.4	29.2	46.00		2,185.9
District	Henniker	Hillsboro-Deering	Hopkinton	Stoddard	Washington	Windsor	

\*ADM - Average Daily Membership as reported to the State on Form A3

### Marriages Registered in the Town of Henniker for the Year 1978

Date Groom and Place Bride Name	Res. at Marriage	Birth Place	Parents Name	By Whom Married
1977 Dec. 10 Edward P. McCabe Jr HopkInton	Hopkinton Henniker	Mass	Edward P McCabe Barbara Rigg Alfred Kemp Adelia Michalski	Thomas G Astles JP, Contoccook
Diane A. Kemp	Henniker	IN T	Adelia Michalski	
Jan 7 Charles W. Curtis Concord JoAnn M Portalupi	Henniker Bow	Mass Vt	Joseph G Curtis Elizabeth F Baker Joseph V Portalupi Rita C Saliba	George E Murray Rom Cath, Concord
Feb 4 Michael C Damour	Henniker	NH		David L Ebert
Henniker Donna M DeFazlo	Henniker	RI	Alfred DeFazlo Theresa A Fortier	Minister, Henniker
Feb 11 Lawrence R French Sr	Henniker	Mass	Chester W French Virginia C Parker	David L Ebert Minlster, Henniker
Henniker Toni M Gero	Henniker	NH	Edgar C Avery Pauline M Quimby	
Mar 11 John E Marohl Meredith	Bradford	Wisc	John R Marohl Mary E Knop	David L Ebert Minister, Henniker
Phyllis H Johnson	Henniker	Mass	Edward T Johnson Phyllis H Cushman	
Mar 31 Robert A Schule Jr	Henniker	Conn	Robert A Schule Sr Betty Ann Lockwood	Louisa K Woodman JP, Hampton
. Hampton Vickie L Phillabaum	Henniker	Ohio	Marion E Phillabaum Earbara K Otanic	JP, Hampton
Apr 18	Woburn Ma	Ma	James F Brissenden	John Schule Jr
William J Brissenden Henniker Dorothy M Litchfield	Quincy Ma	NH	Rose R Reddy Bertram W Litchfield Florence M Jackson	Minister, Henniker
May 27 David C Bronson	Henniker	NJ	Charles I Bronson	John D Schule Jr
Henniker Susan W Pelton	Henniker	Hawaii	Nancy LeFevre John D. Pelton Wynola Britton	Minister, Henniker
Jun 9 Louis E Hamm Jr	Henniker	Cal	Louis E Hamm Sr	Kathryn L Avery
Henniker Gloria J Morse	Henniker	NH	Shirley A Hair Alfred L Morse Sr Pauline M Quimby	JP, Henniker
Jun 24 Arthur J West III	Henniker	Mass	Arthur J West II	Richard L Hudson
Holderness Mary E Neel	Hillsboro	DC	Carolyn B Ross Samuel E Neel Mary Wilson	Clergyman, Henniker
Jul 7 John D Schule Jr	Henniker	Conn		Harold E Craw
Henniker Eileen E Walsh	Henniker	Me		Minister, Acworth
Jul 7 Robert A Wheldon Henniker	Weare	NH	William H Wheldon Florence Breed	Patricia A Hewitt JP, Weare
Roberta L Green	Weare	Conn		JP, Weare
Jul 8 David L Warren	Antrim	NM		hard P Mitchener Jr
Henniker Sandra L Maxwell	Hennlker	Conn	Irving A Maxwell Jacqueline E Pratt	JP, Henniker
Jul 15 David B Millson	Goffstown	Ger	Donald Millson Phyllis Sinton	Thomas Bresnahan
Nashua Renee D DiMaria	Henniker	Cal	Joseph DiMarla Arlene L Tobin	Priest, Nashua
Kenton G Mortenson Jul 15	Derry	ИН	George Mortenson June Bushway	Raymond J Bean Minister, Concord
Henniker Carol A LeBlanc	Allenstown	Mass	Edward LeBlanc Harriet Dube	minister, Concord
Jul 22 Sam L Sorrels	Henniker	Texas	Robert S Sorrels Jeannette N Normand	Robert W Sterling JP, Henniker
Henniker Valerie J Spakoski	Henniker	Mass	Edward W Spakoski Alexandra R Remick	or, richniker
Aug 19 John A Kowalski Manchester	Henniker	Mass	Robert S Kowalski	Gregory C Keleher , Priest, Manchester
Debra J Lesmerises	Manchester	NH	Jeanne Allen OSB Hector Lesmerises Lorralne Rambeau	, Trest, manenester

Date Groom and	Res. at Birth	Parents	By Whom
Place Bride Name	Marriage Place	Name	Married
Sep 2 Henry Skwozynski Manchester		Henry Skwozynski Catherine Garzyna	John Gravas Manchester
Verna A Webber	Henniker NH	Milton S Towns Persis F Ash	
Sep 5 James E Bohringer Webster	Henniker NY		F McKean III JP, Contoocook
Margaret A Savastano	Henniker NY		01
Sep 9 David E Morrison Henniker	Henniker NH		hard L Hudson ister, Henniker
Catherine Goss	Henniker NH	Donald R Goss Sr Phyllis L Stewart	
Sep 24 Michael C French Bradford	Henniker NH	Durwood A French Rober Barbara A Conner	A Howard III JP, Henniker
Zoe A Richardson	Henniker England	Henry H Richardson Isabel Chapman	er y rreminter
Sep 30 Raymond J Ripper Henniker	Alexand Va NJ	Frederick J Ripper Gertrude A Neuenhaus	George Niles Clergyman,
Barbara Fleming	Alexand Va NY	Frederick G Fleming Marie T Grenier	Greenfield
Nov 4 Daniel M Kossick Jr	Henniker Mass	Daniel M Kossick Sr Ellen M McCarthy	Arthur Sullivan Priest, Tilton
Tilton Sarah E Dyment		Dexter D Dyment Margaret E Sheehan	, , , , , , , , ,
Dec 2 Alfred J Archambault Jr		Alfred J Archambault Sr Alphonsine Brochu Min	John Schule Jr ister, Henniker
Henniker Judy J Houghton	Henniker NH	Robert W Morse Nina Coombs	
Dec 24 Dennis H Taylor Manchester	Henniker NH		nald L Fowler JP, Manchester
Kathyran D Williams	Henniker Texas	Bill Lamb Dorothy L Suhl	, manuficater
Dec 30 Mark A Doyle Henniker	Raymond Me Me		John Schule Jr ister, Henniker
Elizabeth E Brothwell	Henniker Mass	William J Brothwell Sr Eleanor A Rich	iscor, ricilliker

### Births Registered in the Town of Henniker for the Year 1978

Birth	Birth				
Date	Place	Name of Child	Father	Mother	Residence
1977 Dec 28	Concord	Adrienne Marie	Phillp F Scheil	Margaret M Malecki	Henniker
Dec 29	Concord			Darby Ann Martin	Henniker
Dec 30	Concord	Christian Eagleton	Jed S Schwartz	Nancy L Eagleton	Henniker
Dec 30  1978  Jan 17  Feb 2  Feb 2  Feb 26  Feb 26  Apr 27  May 29  May 29  Jun 1  Jul 13  Aug 15  Sep 22  Sep 23  Aug 15  Sep 22  Sep 23  Oct 18  Cct 22  Nov 18  Dec 12	Henniker Concord	Lura Decato Nathan Andrew Sarah Lynn Kelly Alicia Benjamin Steven Brandon Gary Trinity April Christopher Glenn Andrew Keith Brendan Fontaine Corey Michael Timothy Christoph Gregory Francis Lindsay Elizabeth Daniel VIII Ross William Sarah Elizabeth Willow Jillian Vera Lindsay Brooke Christina Marie Alison Kimberly	Hugh M Sanborn Albert R Aucoin James M Maloney Richard L Moore Steven A Randall Gary E Blindt Richard A French Jr	Rhonda M Decato Lorraine R Cloutier Pauline E Gaucher Donna A Clough Pamela L Sweeney Gail A Ruel Barbara A Douglas Belinda M Smith Margaret M Ecord Celine J O Fontaine Angelike Kreiser Janet M Ayer Janice E Mahoney Marcia V Kunze Beth A McBrine Judith M Northrup Salfy G Bailey Robin Smiley Virginla V Ross Melanie D Gay Janice L Taylor Nancy L Bealieu Joan Whitney	Pittsfield Henniker
Dec 27	Concord	Amy Marie	Wayne A Krzyzaniak		Henniker

### Deaths Registered in the Town of Henniker for the Year 1978

-	catily ite	gistored in the 1	O W 11	01 1	Telliliker 101 the	1011 1970
				Birth	Father	
Data	Place	Nama	Λ ~ ~		Name	Mother Name
Date	Flace	Name	Age	Place	Manie	Wother Name
Jan 7	Concord	Benjamin Mozrall	68	NH	Benjamin Mozrali	Eva Hemorick
Jan 15	Manch	Charles A .Hardy	69	ИН	Ernest Hardy	Susle Rayno
Jan 18	Concord	Nunzio V DeCarne	84	Italy	Francis DeCarne	Angela D'Onofrio
Jan 27	Keene	Clifford A Phillips	74	NH	Cassius M Phillips	Katherine Alden
Feb 6	Concord	Marianne E Malek	39	Ger.	Nemmick Swick	Luci Bartels
Feb 20	Henniker	Blanche Rita Jache	61	ИН	Joseph H Damour	Exilda Duperron
Mar 3	Hillsboro	Joseph B Maillette	73	ИН	William F Maillette	Ellen Cashion
Mar 9	Concord	Paul Robert LeClero		NH	Ernest LeClerc	Eugenie Dufour
Mar 11	Henniker	Blanche M Eaton	76	NH	Thomas H Eaton	Sarah Collins
Mar 14	Henniker	Margaretha S Carnes		Ma	Robert Seller	Caroline Schacht
Mar 15	Concord	Fred G Barnard	67	NH	Grover C Barnard	Inez Cushing
Mar 17	Boscawen	Henry Lesperance	90		Alexander Lesperance	
Mar 19	Henniker	Christopher Jedrey	14	Ma	Raymond J Jedrey	Elaine Y Perrault
Apr 2	Concord	Beatrice Y Magoon	55	ИН	Everett Tandy	Rose Bailey
Apr 4	Manch	Arthur H Spencer	59 76	NH Ma	Arthur Spencer	Llilian Foote Harrlet Bacon
Apr 11	N. London	Eliot E Holbrook Marion MacLean	91	Ma	Eugene Holbrook Hawes	Llly Brooks
Apr 11	Boscawen	Floyd P Haskell	80	NH	William Haskell	Aiberta Plummer
Apr 23	Concord	Glenna C Ashford	69	Vt	Vester Cleveland	L'uttie Allen
Apr 30 May 7	Concord	Richard Tully	51	ĬĬĬ	Lawrence Tuily	Virginia Rust
May 7	Concord	Clair F Hoyt	84	ЙH	John Hoyt	Grace
May 10	Concord	Reginald L Homo	50	NH	Joseph Homo	Mabel Davis
May 14	N. London	Alice M Wilkins	69	ŊĴ	Issac Steenson	Elizabeth Moore
May 18	Manch	Paul H Sanborn	82	NH	George Sanborn	Katherine Sanborn
May 23	Concord	Isabel E Hatlack	59	NY	Alan A Bell	Isabel E Irons
Jun 8	Concord	Edna A Moody	82	NH	Alvah D Wilson	Elizabeth Gilmore
Jun 11	Concord	Lyda M Colby	83	Fla	Unknown	Unkown
Jun 13	Peterboro	Elvina E St Jernster	79	Swede	en Unknown	Unkown
Aug 9	Henniker	Lester W Carnes	72	NH	Wilbur S Carnes	Mary J Clarey
Sept 12	Concord	Isobel A Morris	79	Wisc	Gustave Heth	Adele Osmond
Sept 14	Concord	Carol M White	47	Wisc	Fred Brown	Laura Kohl
Sept 19	Concord	Harrison V Carter	59	Me	Harrison Carter Sr	Delia Kane
Oct 27	Concord	Muriel H Robertson	85	ИН	William D Brill	Sarah A Barker
Nov 11	Boscawen	Marlon C Ernst	86	Ma	Unknown	Unkown
Dec 8	Concord	Crolla D Butler	25	Ind	Arthur G Lanfair	Ruth Thacker



